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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
Members of the Board of Regents 
Kentucky Community and Technical College System  
Versailles, Kentucky 
 
Secretary of Finance and  
Administration Cabinet of the  
Commonwealth of Kentucky 
 
Report on the Financial Statements  
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Kentucky Community and Technical College 
System (the System or KCTCS), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, as of and for the 
years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the System's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion  
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the System, as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in its financial position and its cash 
flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the year ended June 30, 2018, the System 
adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions, which resulted in a restatement of the System’s beginning 
net position as of July 1, 2017 of approximately $72.4 million.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to 
this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 14 and the required supplementary information on pages 63 
through 70 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the System's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards as 
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the other information, such as the listing 
of the Officers of the KCTCS Board of Regents, KCTCS Board of Regents, and KCTCS President’s Cabinet 
are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.  
 
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole.   
 
The listing of the Officers of the KCTCS Board of Regents, KCTCS Board of Regents, and KCTCS 
President’s Cabinet has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 22, 
2018 on our consideration of the System's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the System's internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Lexington, Kentucky 
October 22, 2018 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Kentucky Community and Technical College System (KCTCS) 
financial statements provides an overview of the financial position and activities of KCTCS for the years ended 
June 30, 2018 and 2017.  This discussion has been prepared by management and is unaudited and should 
be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the related notes which follow this section.  The 
financial statements and related notes and this discussion and analysis are the responsibility of management. 
  

 
Financial Highlights 

 
•    • KCTCS' financial position remained solid at June 30, 2018, with assets and deferred outflows of $1.2 

billion and liabilities and deferred inflows of $778.4 million. Net position, which represents KCTCS' 
residual interest in assets and deferred outflows after liabilities and deferred inflows are deducted, 
was $467.1 million at June 30, 2018 or 37.5 percent of total assets and deferred outflows.  Net 
position at June 30, 2017 was $505.2 million or 42.4 percent of total assets and deferred outflows. 

 
  • KCTCS adopted GASB Statement 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 

Benefits Other Than Pensions during fiscal year June 30, 2018.  The adoption of this statement 
resulted in recording a one-time decrease in net position of $72.4 million, a net OPEB asset of $22.7 
million, a net OPEB liability of $62.3 million and deferred outflows and inflows of $8.1 million and 
$47.2 million, respectively.  In addition, OPEB expense of $5 million was recorded for fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2018. 
 

• Total assets and deferred outflows increased $53.4 million or 4.5 percent. The increase is primarily 
due to recording of the net OPEB asset of $22.7 million, the deferred outflow related to the net OPEB 
obligation of $8.1 million and addition of capital assets of $37 million due to completion of BuildSmart 
projects.  Total liabilities and deferred inflows increased by $91.5 million or 13.3 percent.  The 
increase is primarily due to recording of the net OPEB liability of $62.3 million and OPEB related 
deferred inflows of $47.2 million and the addition of a lease agreement totaling $27.7 million.  These 
increases were offset by a reduction to total liabilities and deferred inflows of $40.4 million, which 
was comprised of a decrease in the net pension liability of $131 million and an increase in pension 
related deferred inflows of $90.6 million.  

 
• Total net position decreased $38.1 million due to the adoption of GASB Statement 75, which resulted 

in a one-time decrease to net position of $72.4 million.  This change combined with the impact of 
GASB Statement 75 on June 30, 2018 activity, the changes in net pension liability and related 
deferred inflows and outflows as well as increases in capital assets and related lease agreements 
accounts for the overall decrease in total net position. 

 
• Operating revenues were $222.3 million and operating expenses were $559.8 million, resulting in a 

loss from operations of $337.5 million.  When nonoperating revenues of $369 million (including 
$179.8 million in state appropriations) and other revenues of $2.8 million are added, this resulted in 
an increase of $34.3 million in net position prior to the decrease in net position of $72.4 million related 
to adoption of GASB Statement 75. 

  
Using the Financial Statements 

 
The Financial Statements consist of Statements of Net Position (Balance Sheets), Statements of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Income Statements), Statements of Cash Flows, and Notes to the 
Financial Statements.  These financial statements are prepared in accordance with standards issued by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  Accordingly, the accrual basis of accounting is used 
whereby revenues are recognized when earned (when the service is provided) and expenses are recognized 
when incurred (when the service is received), regardless of when cash is exchanged. 
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Reporting Entity 
 

The Kentucky Community and Technical College System is a component unit of the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky (Commonwealth). KCTCS was created in May 1997 by The Higher Education Improvement Act 
(House Bill 1) of the Kentucky General Assembly. Since its creation, KCTCS has become the largest provider 
of postsecondary education and workforce training in the Commonwealth. 
 
KCTCS provides both credit and non-credit education and training primarily to Kentucky residents. In fact, for 
most Kentuckians, higher education begins with KCTCS at one of its 16 colleges through traditional and 
distance education.  Offering approximately 10,000 online course sections annually, KCTCS is the largest 
provider of internet-based courses in the state. KCTCS provides high quality, relevant educational programs 
and responsive business and industry training throughout the Commonwealth.  Since its inception, KCTCS 
has provided the lowest tuition in the Commonwealth through a single, straightforward tuition and charge 
structure.  KCTCS is committed to providing the best value in higher education in Kentucky. 
 
KCTCS offers a variety of certificates, diplomas, and associate degree programs as well as customized 
training programs for business and industry. Through the Kentucky Fire Commission and the Kentucky Board 
of Emergency Medical Services, KCTCS provides fire and rescue training, certifications for first responders 
and emergency medical technicians, and licenses paramedics and ambulance services throughout the state. 
All KCTCS colleges have Southern Association of Colleges and Schools (SACS) accreditation as 
consolidated comprehensive community and technical colleges. 

 
KCTCS has over 70 locations with 16 colleges strategically positioned throughout the regions of the 
Commonwealth - from Maysville to Somerset and from Ashland to Paducah - KCTCS is accessible and 
convenient to all Kentuckians. KCTCS' colleges offer over 120 programs and over 700 credentials including 
certificates, diplomas and associate degrees in Arts, Science, Applied Science and Fine Arts.  The single 
most popular area of study is the baccalaureate transfer program, which allows a student to earn an associate 
degree through KCTCS and transfer those credits to any Kentucky university. 

 
KCTCS also provides educational enrichment opportunities through community development classes related 
to personal improvement, cultural activities and fine arts. These classes are tailored to meet local needs and 
provide opportunities for Kentuckians to connect, learn and grow in their communities. 

 
While continuing to emphasize its historical mission to provide general education, KCTCS is increasing its 
focus on occupational and technical education and workforce training. KCTCS is Kentucky's primary provider 
of workforce training, delivering programs and services that address the full spectrum of needs faced by 
business and industry, as well as, programs for individuals who want to upgrade their skills. KCTCS colleges 
deliver high quality, cost-effective customized training and assessment services to support business and 
industry so they can remain globally competitive and contribute to the economic viability of the 
Commonwealth. In FY18, KCTCS colleges provided workforce training for over 5,000 companies through the 
Commonwealth for over 40,000 individuals. 

 
Statements of Net Position 

 
The Statements of Net Position present the financial condition of KCTCS at the end of the fiscal year and 
include all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows.  Net position, the difference between total 
assets and deferred outflows and total liabilities and deferred inflows, is an important indicator of the current 
financial condition.  Assets and liabilities are generally reported at cost.  The major exception is investments 
which are reported at fair value.   
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A summary of the assets and deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows and net position of KCTCS at 
June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016, is as follows: 

 
Condensed Statements of Net Position (amounts in thousands) 

 

 
 

Assets and Deferred Outflows:  As of June 30, 2018, total assets and deferred outflows amounted to $1.2 
billion.  Of this amount, investment in capital assets (net of depreciation) of $724.8 million, or 58.2 percent of 
total assets and deferred outflows, represented the largest asset class.  Cash and cash equivalents amounted 
to $312.5 million or 25.1 percent of total assets and deferred outflows, and endowments amounted to $62.9 
million or 5 percent of total assets and deferred outflows.  During the year, total assets and deferred outflows 
increased by $53.4 million, primarily due to recording of the net OPEB asset of $22.7 million, the deferred 
outflow related to the net OPEB obligation of $8.1 million and addition of capital assets of $37 million due to 
completion of BuildSmart projects. 

 
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows:  As of June 30, 2018, total liabilities and deferred inflows amounted to 
$778.4 million. Net pension liability amounted to $314.2 million or 40.4 percent of total liabilities and deferred 
inflows. Capital leases amounted to $172.6 million or 22.2 percent of total liabilities and deferred inflows. 
Liabilities and deferred inflows increased by $91.5 million. The increase is primarily due to recording of the 
net OPEB liability of $62.3 million and OPEB related deferred inflows of $47.2 million and the addition of a 
lease agreement totaling $27.7 million.  These increases were offset by a reduction to total liabilities and 
deferred inflows of $40.4 million, which was comprised of a decrease in the net pension liability of $131 million 
and an increase in pension related deferred inflows of $90.6 million.     

 
Net Position:  As of June 30, 2018, total net position amounted to $467.1 million.  Net position is reported on 
the Statements of Net Position in three categories: net investment in capital, $572.2 million (122.5 percent); 
restricted $169.5 million (36.3 percent); and unrestricted, $(274.6) million (-58.8 percent). 

 
Restricted net position is subject to externally imposed restrictions governing its use.  Unrestricted net position 
is not subject to externally imposed restrictions, however, substantially all unrestricted net position has been 
designated for support of instructional programs and initiatives and working capital requirements. 

2018 2017 2016
Assets and Deferred Outflows
Current assets 260,354$  208,550$  177,027$  
Noncurrent assets 921,036    904,882    816,313    
Deferred outflows 64,138      78,711      40,170      

Total assets and deferred outflows 1,245,528 1,192,143 1,033,510 

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows
Current liabilities 58,384      43,075      41,228      
Noncurrent liabilities 535,426    596,843    492,578    
Deferred inflows 184,600    47,034      31,936      

Total liabilities and deferred inflows 778,410    686,952    565,742    

Net Position
Net investment in capital 572,176    598,967    599,368    
Restricted 169,535    124,538    104,281    
Unrestricted (274,593)   (218,314)   (235,881)   

     Total net position 467,118$  505,191$  467,768$  
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Total net position decreased $38.1 million due to the adoption of GASB Statement 75, which resulted in a one-
time decrease to net position of $72.4 million.  This change combined with the impact of GASB Statement 75 
on June 30, 2018 activity, the changes in net pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows and the 
increase in capital assets and related lease agreements accounts for the overall decrease in total net position.  
 

2017 Versus 2016 
 
  As of June 30, 2017, total assets and deferred outflows amounted to $1.19 billion. Of this amount, 

investment in capital assets (net of depreciation) of $687.8 million, or 57.7 percent of total assets and 
deferred outflows, represented the largest asset class.  Cash and cash equivalents amounted to 
$314.0 million or 26.3 percent of total assets and deferred outflows, and endowments amounted to 
$56.8 million or 4.8 percent of total assets and deferred outflows.  During the year, total assets and 
deferred outflows increased by $158.6 million, primarily due to the receipt of $65.6 million in state bond 
proceeds for BuildSmart projects and an increase in deferred outflows of $38.5 million. 

 
  As of June 30, 2017, total liabilities and deferred inflows amounted to $687.0 million.  Net pension 

liability amounted to $445.2 million or 64.8 percent of total liabilities and deferred inflows.  Capital 
leases amounted to $150.0 million or 21.8 percent of total liabilities and deferred inflows.  Liabilities 
and deferred inflows increased by $121.2 million.  This increase is due to the state bond lease of $65.6 
million for BuildSmart projects and an increase in net pension liability of $39.3 million and related 
deferred inflows of $15.5 million.   

 
  Total net position of $505.2 million is recorded in three categories:  net investment in capital, $599 

million (118.6 percent); restricted $124.5 million (24.6 percent); and unrestricted $(218.3 million) (-43.2 
percent).  Total net position increased by $37.4 million during the year ended June 30, 2017.  This 
increase was primarily due to an increase in income before other revenues, expenses, gains or losses 
of $25.8 million.   

 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

 
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position are prepared using the accrual basis 
of accounting.  The change in net assets is an indicator of whether the overall financial position has improved 
or declined during the year.  All items that increase or decrease net assets must appear on the Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position as revenues, expenses, gains or losses.  Financial 
activities are reported as either operating or nonoperating.  State appropriations, certain grants, gifts, 
investment and endowment income are required to be classified as nonoperating revenues because these 
funds are non-exchange revenues provided to KCTCS without direct commensurate value for those revenues.  
Accordingly, KCTCS reports an operating loss for the year prior to the addition of nonoperating revenues.   
 
The utilization of long-lived capital assets is reflected in the financial statements as depreciation, which 
amortizes the cost of an asset over its expected useful life.  Tuition is reduced by scholarships and bad debt 
expense.  Institutional aid and grants-in-aid funded by federal and state grants are reported net of scholarship 
allowances.   
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Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position  
(amounts in thousands) 

 
 

 
  

Total operating revenues were $222.3 million for the year ended June 30, 2018.  Included in KCTCS' operating 
revenues are net student tuition and fees of $105.8 million or 47.6 percent of total operating revenues, and 
grants and contracts of $103.3 million or 46.5 percent of total operating revenues.  Tuition and fees are 
presented net of bad debt expense, scholarship allowances, gift scholarships and institutional scholarships.   
 
 
 
 
 

2018 2017 2016
Operating revenues

Student tuition and fees, net 105,818$ 98,714$   91,826$   
Grants and contracts 103,266   97,226     93,880     
Other operating revenues 13,190     13,418     13,935     

Total operating revenues 222,274   209,358   199,641   

Operating expenses
Educational and general, excluding depreciation 524,967   538,429   567,225   
Depreciation 34,810     32,161     31,750     

Total operating expenses 559,777   570,590   598,975   

Operating loss (337,503)  (361,232)  (399,334)  

Nonoperating revenues 
State appropriations 179,789   185,408   186,359   
Federal and state grants and contracts 178,606   179,883   189,613   
Other nonoperating revenues 10,566     13,119     14,727     

Total nonoperating revenues 368,961   378,410   390,699   

Income (Loss) before other revenues, 
  expenses, gains or losses 31,458     17,178     (8,635)     

Capital construction appropriations 4,692      9,598       10,579     
Net realized gain (loss) on disposal of
  capital assets (6,602)     3,684       (257)        
Additions to (reductions from) endowments 4,756      6,963       (1,872)     

Total other revenues 2,846      20,245     8,450      

Increase (Decrease) in net position 34,304     37,423     (185)        

Net position, beginning of year 505,191   467,768   467,953   
Cumulative effect - GASB 75 implementation (72,377)    -              -             
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 432,814   467,768   467,953   
Net position, end of year 467,118$ 505,191$ 467,768$ 
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A scholarship allowance is the difference between the stated charges for goods and services provided by 
KCTCS and the amount that is billed to students and third parties making payments on behalf of students.  
Any excess aid disbursed to the student is recognized as a student financial aid expense. 
 
Operating expenses totaled $559.8 million.  Of this amount, $525 million or 94 percent of total operating 
expenses was expended for educational and general programs, including instruction, academic support,  
libraries, public service, student services, institutional support, student financial aid and operations and 
maintenance (excluding depreciation).  The loss from operations for the year amounted to $337.5 million.  
Nonoperating and other revenues, net of related expenses, amounted to $371.8 million, resulting in an 
increase in net position of $34.3 million for the year.  The following charts depict operating revenues and 
expenses.  State appropriations are not accounted for as operating revenues and, therefore, are excluded 
from the chart below: 
 
  

 
 

 
  

 
2017 Versus 2016 

 
• Total operating revenues were $209.4 million for the year ended June 30, 2017, including net student 

tuition and fees of $98.7 million (47.2 percent) and grants and contracts of $97.2 million (46.4 percent). 
 

• Operating expenses totaled $570.6 million.  Of this amount, $538.4 million (94.4 percent) was 
expended for educational and general programs, including instruction, libraries, academic support, 
public service, student services, institutional support, student financial aid and operations and 
maintenance (excluding depreciation). 

Student tuition 
and fees, net

47%

Grants and 
contracts

47%

Other operating 
revenue

6%

OPERATING REVENUES

Ins truction and 
support 

71%

Operations and 
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• The loss from operations for the year amounted to $361.2 million.  Nonoperating and other revenues, 
net of related expenses, amounted to $398.6 million, resulting in an increase in net position of $37.4 
million for the year.  Nonoperating revenues include state appropriations of $185.4 million (46.5 percent 
of total nonoperating and other revenues). 

 
 

Statements of Cash Flow 
 

The Statements of Cash Flow present information related to KCTCS' cash inflows and outflows summarized 
by operating, capital, financing, and investing activities.  The primary purpose of the Statements of Cash Flow 
is to provide information about cash receipts and cash payments to allow financial statement readers to 
assess: 

 
  The ability to generate future net cash flow, 
  The ability to meet obligations as they become due, and 
  The possible need for external financing. 
 

A comparative summary of KCTCS' Statements of Cash Flow for the years ending June 30, 2018, 2017, and 
2016 is as follows: 

 
Condensed Statements of Cash Flow (amounts in thousands) 

 
 

 
 

Major sources of cash received from operating activities are student tuition and fees ($102.9 million) and 
grants and contracts ($100.9 million).  Major uses of cash for operating activities are payments to employees 
for salaries and benefits ($330.2 million), payments to vendors and contractors ($142 million) and student 
financial aid ($65.2 million). 

 
Noncapital financing activities include federal, state and local grants, contracts and appropriations of $178.6 
million. 
 

  

2018 2017 2016
Cash (used in) provided by:

Operating activities (320,099)$  (321,619)$ (354,962)$ 
State appropriation 179,789     185,408    186,359    
Other noncapital financing activities 190,148     194,002    203,566    
Capital and related financing activities (53,711)      (9,834)      11,043      
Investing activities 2,334         1,270       1,818       

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,539)        49,227      47,824      

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 313,995     264,768    216,944    

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 312,456$   313,995$  264,768$  
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2017 Versus 2016 
 
  Major sources of cash received from operating activities for the year ended June 30, 2017 are student 

tuition and fees ($95.7 million) and grants and contracts ($96.4 million).  Major uses of cash for 
operating activities are payments to employees for salaries and benefits ($327.5 million), payments to 
vendors and contractors ($131.7 million) and student financial aid ($68.5 million). 

 
  Noncapital financing activities include federal, state and local grants, contracts and appropriations of 

$180 million. 
 

 
Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, totaled $724.8 million at June 30, 2018, an increase of $37 
million. Capital assets as of June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016, and significant changes in capital assets during 
those years are shown below (amounts in thousands): 
  

 

 
 

At June 30, 2018, KCTCS had capital construction projects in progress totaling $54.1 million.  These projects 
are principally financed by appropriations and bond proceeds from the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 
  

  

Balance Net Balance Net Balance
June 30, Additions June 30, Additions June 30,

2016 FY 2017 2017 FY 2018 2018

Land and land improvements 48,401$    3,679$    52,080$    2,795$    54,875$    
Buildings and infrastructure 788,105    25,786    813,891    76,614    890,505    
Equipment, vehicles and campus
  improvements 134,916    4,929     139,845    8,590      148,435    
Library materials 60,945      -            60,945      -             60,945      
Construction in progress 51,592      36,042    87,634      (33,517)   54,117      
Energy saving assets 20,762      12,294    33,056      5,968      39,024      

Total assets 1,104,721 82,730    1,187,451 60,450    1,247,901 
Accumulated depreciation (475,243)   (24,389)   (499,632)   (23,492)   (523,124)   

   Capital assets, net 629,478$  58,341$  687,819$  36,958$  724,777$  
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Economic Factors Impacting Future Periods 
 

The following are existing conditions and circumstances that will affect future financial results: 
 

 

• KCTCS recognizes that additional revenue streams are needed to offset limited state funding and 
tuition revenue increases. In acknowledgment of that fact, the KCTCS initiated a Resource 
Development Assessment Project in late 2017. The project was conducted in partnership with the 
Slater Group, LLC. The overarching goals of the project were to provide prescribed and individualized 
action plans to support a total transformation of resource development functions and improve 
performance across the System. The targeted outcomes included increased fundraising activities, 
improving engagement of alumni, and preparing the System for a future major gifts campaign. Each 
of the 16 KCTCS colleges broke the Project down into three phases for implementation with all 
colleges now in Phase III of the Project, which includes implementation of their new strategic resource 
development plan.  

 
 

• The KCTCS base state appropriation has decreased approximately $61.0 million over the last eleven 
fiscal years (2008 - 2019). In FY 2008, KCTCS received $228.7 million; for FY 2019, the base 
appropriation has fallen to $167.7 million.  
 

• Roughly $8.8 million is set aside annually for mandated programs that are a part of KCTCS’s base 
state appropriation, i.e. The Kentucky Fire Commission and Fire Rescue Training, the Kentucky Board 
of Emergency Medical Services, Adult Agriculture and KCTCS-TRAINS.  

 
• Senate Bill 153 of the 2016 General Assembly established performance funding for postsecondary 

education.  In FY 2019, KCTCS earned $6.8 million or 22% of the Performance Funding Pool in 
additional state appropriation.  KCTCS’s performance funding allocation will be distributed based on 
each college’s performance, respective to the two-year performance funding model’s calculation. 
 
In an effort to reward outcomes promoted by the funding model and address historical funding 
inequities among the 16 colleges, it is anticipated that performance funding will continue to be phased-
in until 100 percent performance distribution is achieved. 

 
• For FY 2019 the Kentucky Council on Postsecondary Education approved a resident tuition rate range 

for KCTCS of up to $12 per student credit hour for the 2018-2020 biennia with no more than an $8 
increase in either year of the biennia.  On June 15, 2018, the KCTCS Board of Regents approved the 
FY 2019 resident tuition rate of $169 per student credit hour. This is an increase of $7 per student 
credit hour, or 4.3 percent, above the FY 2018 tuition rate. Nonresident students from counties 
contiguous to Kentucky will pay $338 per credit hour. Other nonresident students will pay $592 per 
credit hour. Students taking online courses will pay $169 per credit hour. 
 

• The KCTCS Board of Regents approved the FY 2019 operating budget totaling $855.0 million and a 
FY 2019 capital budget totaling $131.3 million. The FY 2019 operating budget continues KCTCS's 
practice of budgeting an unrestricted non-recurring emergency budget reserve, of which $13.3 million 
is budgeted for FY 2019. Each college, the Kentucky Fire Commission, the Kentucky Board of 
Emergency Medical Services and Systemwide operations and support programs were required to set 
aside these funds as a contingency for a possible budget reduction, unforeseen decline in enrollment, 
or other unanticipated, unavoidable costs. 

 
• In December 2012, the KCTCS Board of Regents approved the establishment of a KCTCS OPEB 

Trust. In March 2013, KCTCS funded the Trust to substantially offset the actuarial calculated liability. 
Reflective of bullish financial markets, as of June 30, 2018, the Trust's assets of $196.5 million 
exceeded the total OPEB liability of $172.3 million by $24.2 million or 14.1 percent. 
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• In June 2018, KCTCS obtained the final funding, totaling $27.7 million, for the “KCTCS BuildSmart 
Initiative”.  This funding was obtained through a variable interest note payable.  Previously, two 
separate series of bonds were issued for $65.6 million and $50.6 million in April 2017 and May 2016, 
respectively.  The note payable and both series of bonds were issued through the State Property 
Building Commission on behalf of KCTCS.  The Initiative's total scope is $194.0 million ($145.5 million 
in agency bonds supported by a dedicated $8 per student credit hour fee) with the remaining 25 
percent ($48.5 million) matched from private and other funds raised by KCTCS colleges. "KCTCS 
BuildSmart Initiative" is a public-private partnership designed to provide an investment in Kentucky's 
competitive future. 

 
  The KCTCS Board of Regents approved the following goals and objectives for the KCTCS President for FY 

2019: 
   
  Goal I:    Culture:  Establish a new culture for KCTCS at its 20th anniversary that focuses on advocacy of 

the system, mutual trust of colleagues, open and transparent communications, best-in-class 
service, friend and fundraising, and the professional development of all employees. 

 
Objective 1: Advance the new KCTCS authentic identity advocacy campaign that promotes our 

commitment to enhancing the quality of life for our students, communities, and the 
citizens of Kentucky. 

 
Objective 2:  Engage individuals who serve on the college technical advisory committees, Boards of 

Directors, and Board of Regents to become recognized and reputable advocates of the 
system through training and development. 

 
Objective 3:  Establish a process that allows current students, graduates, employees, and external 

constituents to evaluate our performance in providing outstanding service and in 
communicating in an open and transparent way.  

 
Objective 4:    Engage the college presidents in the implementation of their three-year strategic resource 

development plan, including the application of the updated alumni database, to expand 
private investment in the college and increase the number of advocates for the college 
and system. 

 
Objective 5:    Expand funding for and activities dedicated to employee professional development that 

will advance our commitment to our four brand pillars: 1) providing focused workforce 
education and career readiness, 2) investing in the success of every student, 3) 
establishing a culture that is encouraging and approachable, and 4) promoting employee 
engagement in the communities we serve. 

 
Goal II:    Efficacy:  Continue to improve and promote initiatives that demonstrate the efficiency and     

effectiveness of KCTCS as a system and state-supported institution. 
 

Objective 1:  Increase the efficiency and effectiveness of admissions and enrollment processes at 
KCTCS colleges through the use of LEAN principles and continuous improvement 
practices.  

 
Objective 2:   Promote the 15 to Finish and Work Ready Kentucky Scholarship programs emphasizing 

cost savings and shorter time to a degree.   
 
Objective 3:    Advance the application of the performance-based funding model in order to more 

efficiently distribute state funding.  
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Objective 4:   Expand Systemwide services and projects that lead to greater economic efficiencies and 
improved outcomes.   

 
Goal III:   Impact: Move beyond access and completion to focusing on how KCTCS can make an impact 

in the lives of students, their future employers, and the communities in which they live. 
 
Objective 1:    Expand targeted outreach and support for adult learners to increase their participation 

and success in postsecondary education through partnerships with Skills U, the 
Education and Workforce Development Cabinet, the Labor Cabinet, the Council on 
Postsecondary Education, and local/regional social service organizations.  

 
Objective 2:    Increase the number of KCTCS students who earn a credential in a program aligned with 

a targeted industry sector and who are employed within that sector within six months of 
graduating.  

 
Objective 3:  Develop an alumni-tracking system that will provide data on the job placement of our 

graduates, their advancement in their careers, their community involvement level, and 
their assessment of the education they received at our colleges.   

 
Objective 4:   Promote public access to college services and facilities to strengthen the relationship of 

the colleges in the communities they serve.   
 

• KCTCS colleges are in the process of updating their local plans to coincide with the 2018-20 KCTCS 
Action Plan, a two-year implementation roadmap that prioritizes specific strategies in pursuit of 
established strategic targets. 
 

• As KCTCS celebrates the 20th anniversary of its founding, it will focus on its identity of who 
KCTCS is and what it has meant, and continues to mean, to the citizens of the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky. This celebration will help KCTCS and the 16 colleges gain greater visibility, bolster 
awareness, increase relevance and accurately express KCTCS and its colleges special value to the 
people of Kentucky and beyond.                              
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Our Mission 
 

In everything we do, our mission is to improve the quality of life and employability of the citizens of the 
Commonwealth by serving as the primary provider of: 

 
  • College and workforce readiness 
 
  • Transfer education 
 
  • Workforce education and training 
 

Vision 
 

A world-class system of colleges educating Kentucky's globally competitive workforce. 
 

Values 
 
  • Flexibility and innovation 
  • Quality and excellence 
  • Openness and accountability 
  • Continuous improvement 
  • Data and outcomes-driven decision-making 
  • Inclusion, equity, respect, and global diversity 
  • Balance, collaboration, and teamwork 
 

In summary, although KCTCS has and continues to face many economic challenges, KCTCS management 
believes that its past and current management practices have and continue to position KCTCS for long-term 
financial health. 

 
 



 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2018 and 2017 
(amounts in thousands) 

 
 

   

2018 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets
     Cash and cash equivalents $ 222,455 $ 175,875
     Loans, accounts, and gifts receivable, net of bad debt 32,866 27,088
     Other current assets 5,033 5,587
          Total current assets 260,354 208,550

Noncurrent Assets
     Restricted cash and cash equivalents 90,001 138,120
     Loans and other receivables 2,595 4,463
     Endowment investments 62,856 56,803
     Other long-term investments 18,087 17,677
     Net other postemployment benefit asset 22,720 -
     Capital assets, net 724,777 687,819
          Total noncurrent assets 921,036 904,882

Deferred Outflows
     Deferred outflows - pension 56,037 78,711
     Deferred outflows - other postemployment benefits 8,101 -
          Total deferred outflows 64,138 78,711
              Total assets and deferred outflows 1,245,528 1,192,143

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
     Accounts payable and accrued expenses 20,863 22,710
     Employee withholdings and deposits 3,872 1,339
     Compensated absences - current 930 1,031
     Unearned revenue 10,606 9,398
     Leases payable - current 22,113 8,597
          Total current liabilities 58,384 43,075
Noncurrent Liabilities
     Leases payable - noncurrent 150,514 140,967
     Compensated absences - noncurrent 8,373 9,281
     Net pension liability 314,222 445,241
     Net other postemployment benefit liability 62,317 1,354
          Total noncurrent liabilities 535,426 596,843

Deferred Inflows
     Deferred inflows - pension 133,653 43,024
     Deferred inflows - other postemployment benefits 47,214 -
     Deferred inflows - property 3,733 4,010
          Total deferred inflows 184,600 47,034
              Total liabilities and deferred inflows 778,410 686,952

NET POSITION
     Net investment in capital 572,176 598,967
Restricted
     Nonexpendable 46,600 46,355
     Expendable 122,935 78,183
Unrestricted
     Unrestricted (274,593) (218,314)
          Total net position $ 467,118 $ 505,191



 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 
(amounts in thousands) 

 
 

 
  

2018 2017
OPERATING REVENUES
     Student tuition and fees $ 247,265 $ 232,273
     Less: Scholarship allowances (141,447) (133,559)
          Net tuition and fees 105,818 98,714
     Federal grants and contracts 45,905 42,493
     State and local grants and contracts 57,270 54,661
     Nongovernmental grants and contracts 91 72
     Indirect cost recoveries 2,625 2,629
     Sales and services 5,199 5,247
     Other operating revenues 5,366 5,542
          Total operating revenues 222,274 209,358

OPERATING EXPENSES
Educational and General:
     Instruction 187,508 196,399
     Public service 40,733 39,293
     Libraries 6,524 6,393
     Academic support 27,662 27,403
     Student services 61,009 61,176
     Institutional support 64,879 73,848
     Operation and maintenance of capital assets 71,384 65,407
     Depreciation 34,810 32,161
     Student financial aid 65,268 68,510
          Total operating expenses 559,777 570,590
              Operating loss (337,503) (361,232)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
     State appropriations 179,789 185,408
     Federal and state grants and contracts 178,606 179,883
     Gifts 3,923 7,558
     Investment income 4,039 1,729
     Interest expense - capital leases (2,891) (1,380)
     Other nonoperating revenues 5,495 5,212
          Net nonoperating revenues 368,961 378,410
              Income before other revenues, expenses, gains or losses 31,458 17,178
     Capital construction appropriations 4,692 9,598
     Net realized gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (6,602) 3,684
     Additions to endowments 4,756 6,963
          Total other revenues 2,846 20,245
              Increase in net position 34,304 37,423

NET POSITION
     Net position - beginning of year, as originally stated 505,191 467,768
     Cumulative effect - GASB 75 implementation (72,377) -
     Net position - beginning of year, as restated 432,814 467,768
     Net position - end of year $ 467,118 $ 505,191



 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 
(amounts in thousands) 

 
 

   

Cash flows from operating activities:
Tuition and fees $ 102,943 $ 95,651
Grants and contracts 100,923 96,398
Indirect cost recoveries 2,625 2,629
Sales and services 5,199 5,247
Payments to vendors and contractors (142,009) (131,653)
Student financial aid (65,230) (68,465)
Salaries, wages and benefits (330,234) (327,523)
Other receipts 5,684 6,097

Net cash used in operating activities (320,099) (321,619)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State appropriations 179,789 185,408
Federal, state and local grants, contracts and appropriations 178,606 179,883
Gifts and pledges received for non-capital purposes 6,049 8,907
Other nonoperating receipts 5,493 5,212

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 369,937 379,410

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital appropriations 4,692 9,598
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 5,566 5,847
Purchase of capital assets (84,141) (92,835)
Principal paid on leases (9,917) (6,334)
Proceeds from leases 32,980 75,270
Interest paid on leases (2,891) (1,380)

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (53,711) (9,834)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 80 192
Interest on investments 4,316 2,067
Purchase of investments (2,062) (989)

Net cash provided by investing activities 2,334 1,270
Net change in cash (1,539) 49,227

Cash - beginning of year 313,995 264,768
Cash - end of year $ 312,456 $ 313,995

2018 2017



 

 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 
(amounts in thousands) 

 
 

2017

Reconciliation of net operating loss to net cash used in 
operating activities:

Operating loss $ (337,503) $ (361,232)
Adjustments to reconcile net operating loss to net cash

used in operating activities:
Depreciation expense 34,810 32,161
Change in actuarially calculated pension and (12,480) 16,194
    OPEB expense
Increase (decrease) in cash due to change in:

Loans and accounts receivable, net (6,109) (4,038)
Other assets 554 (2,599)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,847) (2,041)
Employee withholdings and deposits 2,277 70
Compensated absences (1,009) (1,088)
Unearned revenue 1,208 702
Other obligations               - 252

Net cash used in operating activities $ (320,099) $ (321,619)

Non-cash capital activities:
Donated capital assets $ 73 $ 186

2018



 

Continued 
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2018 and 2017 
 

 
1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
Reporting Entity 
 
The Kentucky Community and Technical College System (KCTCS) is a component unit of the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky and is included in the basic financial statements of the Commonwealth. 

 
KCTCS has considered whether several organizations (e.g. system and colleges' foundations) for which KCTCS is not 
financially accountable have met the criteria for inclusion as component units based on the nature and significance of 
their relationship with KCTCS.  Currently, KCTCS believes none of these organizations are component units. 
  

Basis of Presentation 
 
KCTCS prepares its financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  GASB establishes 
standards for external financial reporting for public colleges and universities. 

 
The financial statement presentation is intended to provide a comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of KCTCS' 
assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, net position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position, and 
cash flows. 
  

Accrual Basis 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, 
assets, deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows from exchange transactions are recognized when the 
exchange transaction takes place, while those from non-exchange transactions are recognized when all applicable 
eligibility requirements are met.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses are recorded when an obligation is incurred.  KCTCS reports as a Business Type Activity (BTA).  BTAs are 
those activities that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services. 
  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
KCTCS considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents.  Noncurrent cash and cash equivalents represent cash restricted for capital construction, grants, loans 
and endowment fund cash pending transfer to the custodian for investment by the endowment fund managers.  Cash 
and cash equivalents held by the KCTCS endowment fund managers are included in endowment investments. 
  

Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits in local banks of $39.0 million and with the Commonwealth of Kentucky 
of $273.4 million.  Deposits with local banks and investment in repurchase agreements are covered by federal 
depository insurance or collateralized by securities held in KCTCS' name by its agents.  Deposits with the 
Commonwealth are covered by federal depository insurance or collateralized by securities held by the Commonwealth 
in its name. 
  

Pooled Endowment Funds 
 
KCTCS employs the total return concept of investment management for setting investment objectives and determining 
investment performance.  This concept recognizes dividends, interest, and realized and unrealized gains or losses in 
determining the total return earned during any particular period.  The market value method of accounting for pooled 
endowment funds is employed to ensure proper distribution of market price changes, realized gains and losses on 
sales, accrued income earned, and distribution of investment earnings for expenditure by participating funds. 
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1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Pooled Endowment Funds (Continued) 
 
The Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, as adopted by the Commonwealth of Kentucky, permits 
KCTCS to appropriate an amount of the realized and unrealized endowment appreciation to support current programs.  
Accordingly, spendable return of the endowment is determined using the total return philosophy.  The philosophy 
recognizes a prudent amount of the increase in the fair value of investments (realized and unrealized) as spendable 
return in addition to interest and dividends earned.  Distribution of investment earnings for expenditure by participating 
funds is supported first by interest and dividends and, if necessary and available, a transfer from the endowment of 
any accumulated realized and unrealized gains on investments. 
  

If a donor has not provided specific instructions, state law permits KCTCS to authorize for expenditure the new 
appreciation (realized and unrealized) of the investments of endowment funds.  When administering its power to spend 
net appreciation, KCTCS is required to consider the long and short-term needs present and anticipated financial 
requirements, expected total return on its investments, price-level trends, and general economic conditions. The 
amount of earnings to be distributed is determined annually based on these factors.  Any net appreciation that is spent 
is required to be spent for the purposes for which the endowment was established. 
  

At June 30, 2018, net appreciation of $11.5 million is available to spend, of which $11.2 million is restricted for specific 
purposes. 
 
Investments 
 
Investments, other than money markets, are stated at fair value and unrealized gains and losses on the carrying value 
of investments are reported as a component of investment income in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position. Money markets are measured at amortized cost. 
  

Loans, Accounts and Pledges Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable consist of student tuition and fees and amounts due from federal, state and local governments or 
private sources in connection with grants and contracts.  Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated 
uncollectible amounts.  KCTCS determines its allowance by considering a number of factors, including the length of 
time accounts receivable are past due, previous loss history and the condition of the general economy.  KCTCS writes 
off accounts when they are assessed as uncollectible.  Pledges receivable are unconditional commitments from donors 
to give stated amounts over a specific period of time in the future.  KCTCS records pledges at the present value of the 
net realizable amount. Loans receivable primarily consist of loans made by the Fire Commission.  The Fire Commission 
is authorized to make low interest loans for the purchase of major equipment and construction of facilities to properly 
train volunteer fire departments that do not have other sources of funds at rates, which are favorable given their 
financial resources.  KCTCS currently considers loans receivable and pledges to be fully collectible.  Accordingly, no 
allowance for uncollectibles is recorded at June 30, 2018 and 2017. 

 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are stated at cost at the date of acquisition or, in the case of gifts, at acquisition value at the date of the 
gift.  Interest incurred on construction in progress is capitalized.  For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, total 
interest capitalized was $1,521,109 and $1,528,925. 

 
Equipment with a unit cost of $5,000 or more and having an estimated useful life of greater than one year is capitalized.  
Renovations to buildings, infrastructure and land improvements that significantly increase the value or extend the 
useful life of the structure are capitalized.  Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense in the 
period in which the expense is incurred. 
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1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Capital Assets (Continued) 
 
Depreciation of capital assets is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, 
generally 40 years for buildings and land improvements, 25 years for infrastructure, 10 years for library volumes and 
3 to 10 years for equipment.  Assets under vendor financing agreements are amortized on the straight-line basis over 
the estimated useful life of the asset, or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
The liability and expense for employee vacation and sick leave is recorded as compensated absences in the 
Statements of Net Position and as a component of operating expenses in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position. 

 
Unearned Revenue 
 
Unearned revenue consists primarily of unearned tuition and fees related to the summer session and amounts from 
grants and contracts that have not yet been earned under the terms of the agreements. 

 
Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and 
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS) 
and Kentucky Teachers Retirement System (KTRS) and additions to/deductions from KERS' and KTRS' fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by KERS and KTRS.  For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 
 
The KERS and KTRS defined benefit OPEB plans provide other postemployment benefits to eligible retirees 
participating in the KERS and KTRS pension plans.  For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred 
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position 
of KERS and KTRS and additions to/deductions from KERS’ and KTRS’ fiduciary net position have been determined 
on the same basis as they are reported by KERS and KTRS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are 
reported at fair value. 
 
The KCTCS defined benefit OPEB plan provides other postemployment benefits to eligible retirees participating in the 
403(b) defined contribution plan.  The KCTCS OPEB plan is funded through an irrevocable trust under IRC Section 
115, which was established during the year ended June 30, 2013.  The KCTCS OPEB plan recognizes benefit 
payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.   
 
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB asset or liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources 
and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the KCTCS OPEB and additions to/deductions from 
the KCTCS’ OPEB fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as described, above. 
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1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Net Position 
 
Net position is required to be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the following categories: 

 
  Net investment in capital:  Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and unspent principal balances of 

debt, attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 
 
  Restricted: 

Nonexpendable - Net assets of $46.6 million is subject to externally imposed stipulations maintained 
permanently by KCTCS.  Such assets include permanent endowment funds. 
Expendable - Net assets of $122.9 million whose use by KCTCS is subject to externally imposed stipulations 
that can be fulfilled by actions of KCTCS pursuant to those stipulations or that expire by the passage of time. 

 
  Unrestricted:  Net assets whose use by KCTCS is not subject to externally imposed stipulations.  Unrestricted 

net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board of Regents or may 
otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties. 

 
Student Tuition and Fees 
 
Student tuition and fees are presented net of bad debt, scholarships and other financial aid applied to student accounts.  
Payments made directly to students are presented as student financial aid expenses. 

 
Scholarship Allowances 
 
Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported net of scholarship allowances 
in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  Scholarship allowances are the difference 
between the stated charge for goods and services provided and the amount that is paid by students or third parties 
making payments on the students' behalf.  Certain governmental grants and other Federal, state or nongovernmental 
programs are recorded as either operating or nonoperating revenues in the financial statements.  To the extent that 
revenues from such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, they are recorded as 
scholarship allowances. 

 
Federal and State Grants and Contracts 
 
Pell Grants, Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants (SEOG), College Access Program (CAP) Grants and 
Kentucky Educational Excellence Scholarships (KEES) are considered nonexchange transactions and are recorded 
as nonoperating revenues in the accompanying financial statements. 

 
Operating Activities 
 
KCTCS defines operating activities, as reported in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position, as those that result from exchange transactions, such as payments received for providing goods and services 
and payments made for goods and services received.  Nearly all of KCTCS' expenses are from exchange transactions.  
Certain significant revenues relied on for operations, such as state appropriations, certain grants, gifts and investment 
income, are recorded as nonoperating revenues. 
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1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Income Taxes 
 
KCTCS is an agency and instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, pursuant to Kentucky Revised Statutes 
sections 164.580 thru 164.600.  Accordingly, KCTCS is generally exempt from federal income taxes as an organization 
described in Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. 

 
Restricted Asset Spending Policy 
 
KCTCS' policy is that restrictions on assets cannot be fulfilled by the expenditure of unrestricted funds for similar 
purposes.  The determination of whether restricted or unrestricted funds are expended for a particular purpose is made 
on a case-by-case basis.  Restricted funds remain restricted until spent for the intended purpose. 

 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to use estimates and assumptions.  The accompanying financial statements include 
estimates for items such as bad debt allowances, fair value of investments, useful lives of capital assets, accrued 
expenses (vacation, sick, worker's compensation and unemployment), net pension liability, net other postemployment 
benefit liability and other liability accounts.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
Accounting Pronouncements Adopted/Implemented 
 
In fiscal year 2018, KCTCS adopted GASB Statement 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions.  The primary objective of GASB’s Statement 75 is to improve accounting and financial 
reporting by state and local governments for other postemployment benefit obligations (OPEB).  The financial 
statements include the accrued actuarial OPEB liability (asset) for Kentucky Teachers’ Retirement System (KTRS), 
Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS) and the KCTCS Retiree Health Plan and additional components 
associated with recording the OPEB liability (asset).  The adoption of this statement resulted in a decrease in net 
position at July 1, 2017 of $72.4 million to reflect the beginning of year net OPEB liability and deferred outflow of 
resources.  
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
 
As of June 30, 2018, the GASB has issued the following statements which KCTCS has not yet implemented: 
 

• GASB Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities.  This statement establishes requirements for identifying and reporting 
fiduciary activities of state and local governments. It is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018.  
KCTCS will implement this statement during its fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. 

 
• GASB Statement 87, Leases.  This statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for 

leases that were previously classified as operating leases.  It is effective for periods beginning after December 
15, 2019.  KCTCS will implement this statement during its fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. 
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1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements (Continued) 
 

• GASB Statement 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period.  This 
statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an 
expense in the period in which the cost is incurred.  As a result, interest cost incurred will not be included in 
the historical cost of a capital asset.  It is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019.  KCTCS 
will implement this statement during its fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. 

 
• GASB Statement 90, Majority Equity Interest. This statement requires that majority equity interests be 

reported as an investment.  It is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020.   
 

KCTCS’ management has not yet determined the effect these statements will have on KCTCS’ financial statements. 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events for accounting and disclosure requirements through October 22, 2018, 
the date that the financial statements were available to be issued.  In July 2018, KCTCS exercised its option to make 
an annual payment on a lease agreement, which was entered into during June 2018.  The amount paid totaled $13.6 
million.   

 
Reclassifications 
 
Certain reclassifications to fiscal 2017 comparative amounts have been made to conform to the 2018 classifications, 
with no impact on net position or change in net position. 

 
2. Loans, Accounts and Pledges Receivable 

 
Loans, accounts and pledges receivable (net of allowances) as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, are as follows (amounts 
in thousands): 

 

 
 
 
 

2018 2017

Student (net of allowances of $2,415 and $3,389) 17,890$    14,730$  
Other receivables 712          384        
Reimbursement receivable – grants and contracts 12,378      9,781     
Pledges receivable 1,689       3,888     
Accrued interest receivable 392          45          
Bridge loans 160          175        
Loans receivable from fire districts 2,240       2,548     

     Total 35,461      31,551    

Current portion 32,866      27,088    

Non-current portion 2,595$      4,463$    
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2. Loans, Accounts and Pledges Receivable (Continued) 
 
Pledges receivable of $1.7 million are expected to be collected primarily over the next ten years, as follows (amounts 
in thousands): 
 

2019  $     920  
2020         422  
2021         115  
2022         104  
2023           44  
2024-2028         165  
      1,770  
Present value discount           81  
  
  $   1,689  

 

 
KCTCS is required to record operating, endowment and capital pledges as revenue when all eligibility requirements 
have been met. 

 
Fire commission receivables of $2.2 million are expected to be collected primarily over the next twelve years as follows 
(amounts in thousands): 
 

2019   $     574  
2020          509  
2021          351  
2022          244  
2023          193  
2024 - 2028          340  
2029 - 2031            29  
   
   $   2,240  
    

 
3. Investments 

 
Investments are stated at fair value.  Investments acquired by gift are stated at fair value at the date of the gift if a fair 
value is available, and otherwise, at appraised or nominal value.  KCTCS has the following investments as of June 30, 
2018 and 2017 (amounts in thousands): 
  

 
 
 

Investment Type 2018 2017

Bond funds 16,284$  19,862$  
Money market funds 9,455     2,025     
Equity funds 50,052    48,250    
Other 5,152     4,343     

80,943$  74,480$  

Fair Value
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3. Investments (Continued) 
 
Investment types described as "Other", above, include real estate holdings and limited partnerships.  Bond funds, 
equity funds and other funds are invested in fund of funds and are measured at net asset value. 
 
KCTCS has an investment management agreement with the Commonfund.  The Commonfund managed $80.9 million 
and $74.5 million of KCTCS' investments at June 30, 2018 and 2017.  The Commonfund was founded in 1969 to serve 
higher education and not for profit organizations.  It currently serves more than 1,350 organizations and has over $25 
billion in assets under management.  The Commonfund is unrated. 
  

Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single 
issuer.  KCTCS does not have a formal policy for concentration of credit risk. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  KCTCS' 
investment policy does not specifically limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value 
losses arising from increasing interest rates. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, KCTCS will not be able to recover 
the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  KCTCS does not 
have a formal policy for custodial credit risk.  As of June 30, 2018 and 2017, all of KCTCS U.S. Treasuries, U.S. 
Agencies, and Corporate Notes were held by the investment's counterparty. 

 
 
4. Fair Value Measurements 

 
KCTCS categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted 
accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset.  Level 
1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; 
Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  Investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset 
value (NAV) per share, or its equivalent as a practical expedient, are not classified in the fair value hierarchy.  In 
instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the fair value hierarchy, fair value 
measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is significant to the valuation.  
KCTCS' assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements requires judgment and 
considers factors specific to each asset or liability.  
  
Money market accounts, totaling $9,455,172 and $2,024,854 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, are measured at 
amortized cost and are not included in the fair value hierarchy. 
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4. Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 
 
Investments measured at NAV as of June 30, 2018: 
 

 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Investment Type

Fair Value 
Determined 
Using NAV

Unfunded 
Commitment Redemption Terms

Public equities 45,397,909$     -$                 Monthly with 5 days notice.

Public equities - natural resources 2,546,400         -                  Daily.

Fixed income equities 2,107,893         -                  Weekly with 5 days notice.

High quality bonds 13,934,183       -                  Weekly and monthly with 5 days notice.

Alternative investments 2,350,144         -                  Six months subsequent to subscription date 
and semi-annually, thereafter, quarter-end 
redemption with 95 days notice in increments 
of $100,000 or more.

Core real estate 1,094,198         -                  Quarterly with 120 days notice.

Limited partnerships - natural resources 348,737           1,536,325     Upon termination of partnership.

Limited partnerships - real estate 959,669           384,758        Upon termination of partnership.

Limited partnerships - other 2,748,670         3,899,700     Upon termination of partnership.

71,487,803$     5,820,783$   
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4. Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 
 
Investments measured at NAV as of June 30, 2017: 
  

 

 
  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Investment Type

Fair Value 
Determined 
Using NAV

Unfunded 
Commitment Redemption Terms

Public equities 43,166,039$     -$                 Monthly with 5 days notice.

Public equities - natural resources 1,538,652         -                  Daily.

Hedged equities 557,721           -                  
Quarterly with 65 - 95 days notice in 
increments of $100,000 or more.

Fixed income equities 2,987,970         -                  Weekly with 5 days notice.

Multi-strategy bonds 3,958,310         -                  Monthly with 5 days notice.

High quality bonds 9,627,805         -                  Weekly and monthly with 5 days notice.

Alternative investments 6,276,177         -                  Six months subsequent to subscription date 
and semi-annually, thereafter, quarter-end 
redemption with 95 days notice in increments 
of $100,000 or more.

Core real estate 1,104,584         -                  Quarterly with 120 days notice.

Limited partnerships - natural resources 272,269           112,000        Upon termination of partnership.

Limited partnerships - real estate 1,079,114         392,258        Upon termination of partnership.

Limited partnerships - other 1,886,718         4,570,200     Upon termination of partnership.

72,455,359$     5,074,458$   
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4. Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 
    
Investment strategies by type are presented, below: 
 
     Public equities.  To outperform the Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) All Country World  
     Index or the Standard & Poor's 500 over a full market cycle. 
 
     Public equities - natural resources.  To approximate the performance of the Standard & Poor's Global 
     Large Midcap Commodity and Resources Index over the long term. 
 
     Hedged equities.  To outperform the MSCI World Index (Local) or 3-Month Treasury Bills. 
 
     Fixed income equities. To perform at or better than the Bank of America's Merrill Lynch 1-3 Year U.S.  
     Treasury Index. 
 
     Multi-strategy bonds.  To outperform the Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Index over a full  
     market cycle. 
 
     High-quality bonds.  To outperform the Barclays Aggregate Bond Index over a full market cycle. 
 
     Alternative investments.  To provide long-term returns that are favorable to those of equity and credit markets  
     on a risk adjusted basis. 
 
     Core real estate.  To provide returns in excess of the National Council of Real Estate Investment 
     Fiduciaries Fund Index - Open End Diversified Core Equity. 
 
     Limited partnerships - natural resources / other.  To obtain long-term capital growth. 
 
     Limited partnerships - real estate.  To obtain income and capital appreciation. 
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5. Capital Assets, Net 

 
Capital assets as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 and the changes, therein, for the years then ended are summarized as 
follows (amounts in thousands): 

 

Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance

Cost
Land* 33,042$    -$            1,654$    31,388$    
Land improvements 19,038      4,449       -             23,487      
Infrastructure 50,419      3,868       2,908      51,379      
Buildings and structures 763,472    89,594     13,940    839,126    
Construction in progress* 87,634      88,670     122,187  54,117      
Vehicles 13,384      761          377         13,768      
Equipment, furniture, etc. 117,884    13,091     3,995      126,980    
Leasehold improvements 7,379       -              -             7,379       
Library materials 60,945      -              -             60,945      
Energy saving assets 33,056      5,968       -             39,024      
Equine* 10            -              10          -              
Computer software 1,188       -              880         308          

Total 1,187,451 206,401   145,951  1,247,901 

Less accumulated depreciation
Land improvements 6,914       445          -             7,359       
Infrastructure 20,660      2,064       1,757      20,967      
Buildings and structures 304,394    18,361     4,665      318,090    
Vehicles 9,919       1,185       374         10,730      
Equipment, furniture, etc. 80,385      9,018       3,642      85,761      
Leasehold improvements 6,727       73           -             6,800       
Library materials 59,174      580          -             59,754      
Energy saving assets 10,271      3,084       -             13,355      
Computer software 1,188       -              880         308          

Total accumulated depreciation 499,632    34,810     11,318    523,124    

   Capital assets, net 687,819$  171,591$  134,633$ 724,777$  

Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance

Cost
Land* 32,631$    485$        74$         33,042$    
Land improvements 15,770      3,268       -             19,038      
Infrastructure 47,408      3,114       103         50,419      
Buildings and structures 740,697    28,106     5,331      763,472    
Construction in progress* 51,592      36,042     -             87,634      
Vehicles 12,693      1,012       321         13,384      
Equipment, furniture, etc. 113,646    8,296       4,058      117,884    
Leasehold improvements 7,379       -              -             7,379       
Library materials 60,945      -              -             60,945      
Energy saving assets 20,762      12,294     -             33,056      
Equine* 10            -              -             10            
Computer software 1,188       -              -             1,188       

Total 1,104,721 92,617     9,887      1,187,451 

Less accumulated depreciation
Land improvements 6,593       321          -             6,914       
Infrastructure 18,822      1,887       49          20,660      
Buildings and structures 291,061    16,997     3,664      304,394    
Vehicles 9,061       1,179       321         9,919       
Equipment, furniture, etc. 75,366      8,757       3,738      80,385      
Leasehold improvements 6,654       73           -             6,727       
Library materials 58,383      791          -             59,174      
Energy saving assets 8,127       2,144       -             10,271      
Computer software 1,176       12           -             1,188       

Total accumulated depreciation 475,243    32,161     7,772      499,632    

Capital assets, net 629,478$  60,456$   2,115$    687,819$  

*Non-depreciable

2018

2017
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6. Unearned Revenue 

 
Unearned revenue as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 is as follows (amounts in thousands): 
  

 
7. Noncurrent Liabilities 

 
Noncurrent liabilities as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 are summarized as follows (amounts in thousands): 

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

2018 2017

Unearned summer tuition revenue 8,601$   7,646$    
Grants and contracts 2,005     1,752     

10,606$ 9,398$    

Non
Beginning Ending Current Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion Portion

Leases payable
Capital leases payable 149,564$ 32,980$   $ 9,917$      172,627$ 22,113$  150,514$ 

Total leases payable 149,564   32,980     9,917        172,627   22,113    150,514   

Other liabilities
Compensated absences 10,312     13,746     14,755      9,303      930        8,373      
Net pension liability 445,241   -             131,019    314,222   -            314,222   
Net other postemployment benefit
  liability 1,354      60,963     -               62,317     -            62,317     

Total other liabilities 456,907   74,709     145,774    385,842   930        384,912   

Total noncurrent liabilities 606,471$ 107,689$ 155,691$   558,469$ 23,043$  535,426$ 

Non
Beginning Ending Current Current
Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion Portion

Leases payable
Capital leases payable 80,628$   75,270$   $ 6,334$      149,564$ 8,597$    140,967$ 

Total leases payable 80,628     75,270     6,334        149,564   8,597     140,967   

Other liabilities
Compensated absences 11,400     11,926     13,014      10,312     1,031     9,281      
Net pension liability 405,960   39,281     -               445,241   -            445,241   
Long-term disability 930         424         -               1,354      -            1,354      

Total other liabilities 418,290   51,631     13,014      456,907   1,031     455,876   

Total noncurrent liabilities 498,918$ 126,901$ 19,348$    606,471$ 9,628$    596,843$ 

2018

2017
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7. Noncurrent Liabilities (Continued) 

 
Capital leases consist of the following at June 30, 2018 and 2017 (amounts in thousands): 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2018 2017

Computer equipment and software capitalized
leases, all with 1 to 5 year remaining terms with
total annual payments ranging from $1,095 to
$178,904 and interest rates from 0.3% to 4%. 1,005$       634$       

Energy savings capitalized leases with 6 to 15
year remaining terms with total annual payments
ranging from $309,762 to $1,035,057 and interest
rates from 1.96% to 4.65%. 30,635       29,341     

Building capitalized leases with 6 year remaining
terms with total annual payments ranging from
$99,960 to $603,480 and an interest rate ranging
from 2.34% to  4.00%. 3,143         3,700      

Copier and software leases, with 1 to 5 year
remaining terms with total annual payments
ranging from $58 to $295,800 and interest rates of
4%. 534            2,021      

Construction, renovation and design projects with
6 to 20 year terms with annual payments
beginning at $4,070,000 and increasing to
$7,680,000 and interest rates of 2.63% to 3.56%.

137,310      113,868   

172,627$    149,564$ 
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7. Noncurrent Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Principal maturities and interest on capital leases payable for the next five years and in subsequent five-year periods 
as of June 30, 2018 are as follows (amounts in thousands): 
 

 
 
KCTCS has entered into three significant lease agreements with the Commonwealth of Kentucky.  The first agreement 
was entered into on May 1, 2016 in the amount of $50,579,204 and included a premium of $6,024,204 and bond 
issuance costs of $329,204. The second agreement was entered into on April 12, 2017 in the amount of $65,648,879 
and included a premium of $5,513,879, bond issuance costs of $396,563 and prepaid insurance of $252,315.  The 
third agreement was entered into on June 20, 2018 in the amount of $27,775,000 and included issuance costs of 
$48,000.  This lease requires variable interest only payments.  As of June 30, 2018, the interest rate was 2.63%.  
KCTCS may elect to make an annual principal payment on this lease. 
 
The purpose of these leases is to finance construction, renovation and design projects for campus facilities, which 
were approved under House Bill 235 (2014), and House Bill 303 (2016) of the General Assembly of the Commonwealth 
of Kentucky.  KCTCS has pledged as collateral general receipts, including student registration fees, and its debt service 
account. 
 
Operating Leases 

 
KCTCS is obligated under several operating leases for office equipment, classroom space, and office space with 
expirations through June 2035.  Rent expense was $2.6 million in each fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.  
Future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2018 are as follows (amounts in thousands): 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2019 22,113$   5,524$    27,637$   
2020 7,973      5,292      13,265     
2021 7,986      4,969      12,955     
2022 7,752      4,781      12,533     
2023 7,862      4,574      12,436     

2024-2028 51,685     17,458    69,143     
2029-2033 39,891     10,012    49,903     
2034-2038 27,365     2,337      29,702     

172,627$ 54,947$  227,574$ 

2019 1,947$    
2020 785        
2021 761        
2022 559        
2023 474        
Thereafter 989        

5,515$    
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7. Noncurrent Liabilities (Continued) 
 
Sale-Leaseback 
 
Maysville Community and Technical College (MCTC) sold its Rowan Campus during the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2016.  MCTC leased the campus back for $29,666 per month through June 30, 2017 and exercised its option to extend 
the lease through June 30, 2019.  MCTC has the option to renew the lease through such time that its new facility for 
the Rowan Campus is complete.  KCTCS reported deferred inflows of $3,732,703 and a gain of $277,554 related to 
the sale-leaseback as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and deferred inflows of $4,010,257 and a gain of 
$356,000 as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  Deferred inflows will continue to be recognized in 
proportion to lease payments until such time that the lease is terminated. 

 
8. Risk Management 

 
KCTCS is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters.  These risks are covered by (1) the State Fire and Tornado 
Insurance Fund (the Fund), (2) Sovereign Immunity and the State Board of Claims, or (3) in the case of risks not 
covered by the Fund and Sovereign Immunity, commercial insurance.  The Fund covers losses to property from fire, 
wind, earthquake, flood, and other named perils between $5,000 and $1.0 million.  Losses in excess of $1.0 million 
are insured by commercial carriers under contract with the State Fire and Tornado Insurance Fund up to a maximum 
of $1.5 billion per occurrence. 

 
The Commonwealth of Kentucky is covered by sovereign immunity.  Per KRS 44.073, state institutions of higher 
education, including KCTCS, under KRS Chapter 164 are considered agencies of the state.  As such, KCTCS is 
covered by the Board of Claims for acts of negligence up to $0.2 million for a single claim and an aggregate of $0.35 
million per negligent act.  The Board has primary and exclusive jurisdiction over all acts of negligence for state 
institutions of higher education.  For risks not covered by sovereign immunity, KCTCS has purchased commercial 
insurance policies covering risks of loss due to damage to property and automobiles, general and automobile liability 
claims, employee dishonesty, and student accidents.  KCTCS has general liability insurance with an aggregate total 
limit of $3.0 million and a per occurrence limit of $1.0 million without a deductible.  An umbrella policy extends the 
liability aggregate total limit to $10.0 million with a per occurrence limit of $10.0 million without a deductible. 

 
Educator's Legal Liability coverage has been secured through commercial insurance to insure KCTCS' faculty and 
staff against claims arising from actions undertaken within the scope of their job responsibilities.  This coverage also 
extends to the KCTCS Board of Regents.  The limit is $2.0 million without a deductible.  There have been no significant 
reductions in insurance coverage from 2017 to 2018.  Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage during the 
past three years. 

 
Limited Professional Liability insurance has been obtained, which covers all faculty and students who participate in 
allied health programs.   The coverage carries a $1 million per claim limit and $3 million annual aggregate with a 
$10,000 deductible.    International Liability insurance has been obtained for employee and/or student trips to other 
countries that meet the required criteria.   A broad list of coverages with various limits are provided by this insurance. 
 
Employees hired at the community colleges prior to January 14, 1998 (the date the KCTCS Board of Regents accepted 
management of the community colleges from the University of Kentucky) that have not opted into the KCTCS personnel 
system and have the University of Kentucky benefits plan, are covered under a self-insured long-term disability income 
program.  This program is funded through a trust established by the University of Kentucky and now funded by KCTCS 
for the purpose of paying claims and establishing necessary reserves.  KCTCS makes payments to the fund on a pay-
as-you-go basis for long-term disability payments made to its employees who have the University of Kentucky benefit 
plan covered by long-term disability.  The estimated liability for long-term disability claims totaled $1.3 million as of 
June 30, 2018 and 2017. 
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9. Natural Classification 

 
The operating expenses for KCTCS by natural classification are as follows for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 
2017 (amounts in thousands): 
  

 

 
10. Pension Plans 

 
Regular full-time employees of KCTCS, faculty and staff, are required to participate in a retirement plan. 

 
Regular full-time employees subject to KCTCS personnel policies had the opportunity to choose between a defined 
benefit plan and a defined contribution 403(b) plan prior to January 1, 2014.  Effective January 1, 2014, regular full-
time and some part-time employees (those who work 25 or more hours per week) only have the option to elect 
participation in the defined contribution 403(b) plan due to a change in Board of Regents Policy.  For new employees, 
the election to participate in the defined contribution 403(b) plan is made in the first 30 days of regular full-time 
employment or if they meet the criteria of part-time employees as outlined above, within the first 30 days of employment 
or after a 90-day look-back period to determine if the eligibility criteria have been satisfied.  Employees hired with an 
effective date of July 1, 2009, or after, who choose the 403(b) plan option of retirement have a five-year vesting period 
(60 months) of continuous service to be eligible to receive the employee's accrued benefits derived from employer 
contributions.  These employees are immediately vested for employee accrued contributions.  Other employees 
already enrolled in the 403(b) plan option prior to July 1, 2009 do not have the vesting period requirement and are 
vested with employee and employer contributions from the date of initial employment.   
 

 

2018 2017
                                                   
Salaries and wages 241,539$ 236,106$ 
Employee benefits 77,481     106,845   
Student scholarships and financial aid 65,230     68,466     
Depreciation 34,810     32,161     
Equipment not capitalized 22,059     12,872     
Professional services 19,337     19,871     
Fire commission incentive 15,263     15,142     
Utilities 14,987     15,410     
Supplies 12,615     10,474     
Repairs and maintenance 9,656      9,738      
Fire commission state aid 7,667      7,452      
Communications 6,750      6,183      
Fire commission pension 4,592      4,476      
Travel 3,920      3,830      
Fire commission workers compensation 3,662      3,662      
Dues & subscriptions 2,978      3,010      
Rental/lease 2,627      2,609      
Insurance 2,619      2,059      
Grants administrative cost 2,430      2,427      
Advertising 2,400      2,209      
Fire commission grant 1,651      170         
Other, various 5,504      5,418      

559,777$ 570,590$ 
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Employees that have a break in service and are rehired with an effective date of July 1, 2009, or after, default to having 
the five year vesting period (60 months) of continuous service to be eligible to receive the employee's accrued benefits 
derived from employer contributions from the date of rehire.  These employees are immediately vested for employee 
accrued contributions.  The 403(b) plan may not be amended. 
  

KCTCS has authorized four 403(b) retirement plan carriers as follows: 
 
     American Century Investors, Inc. 
     Fidelity Investments 
     Voya Financial 
     Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association/College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA/CREF) 
 
Regular full-time employees that were employed by antecedent organizations prior to the creation of KCTCS, either 
from a community or technical college, that voluntarily elected to join the KCTCS personnel system could choose a 
retirement option based on each employee's eligibility criteria.  The defined benefit plans, KTRS or KERS, have a 5-
year vesting period.  Employer contributions that are forfeited by employees prior to vesting are used to reduce future 
employer contributions. 

 
Regular full-time employees who have not opted for KCTCS personnel policies and benefits and who were employed 
before January 14, 1998 at a community college are subject to the personnel policies of the University of Kentucky 
personnel system and are participants of the University of Kentucky Retirement Plan.  Participants contribute 5 percent 
and KCTCS contributes 10 percent of the participant's eligible compensation to the retirement plan.  The University of 
Kentucky has authorized two retirement plan carriers, as follows: 
 
     Fidelity Institutional Services Company 
     Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association/College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA/CREF) 

 
Regular full-time employees who have not opted for KCTCS personnel policies and benefits, who were employed at a 
technical college before June 30, 1998, are participants in either KTRS (Kentucky Teachers Retirement System) or 
KERS (Kentucky Employees Retirement System) depending on the requirements of the position.  Both KTRS and 
KERS are cost-sharing multiple employer plans. 
  

KCTCS' contributions and costs for all of its retirement plans for 2018 and 2017 were $30.7 million and $30.9 million, 
respectively; employees contributed $13.9 million and $13.8 million for 2018 and 2017.  KCTCS total payroll costs 
were $218.3 million and $236.1 million for 2018 and 2017. 

 
Kentucky Teachers Retirement System (KTRS) 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of KRS 161.250 the Board of Trustees of KTRS is vested with the responsibility for the 
general administration and management of the retirement system.  The Board may adopt procedures necessary to 
conduct the business of the retirement system.  The applicable provisions of the Kentucky Revised Statues shall control 
if any inconsistency exists between state law and this policy.  KTRS issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to 
Kentucky Teacher's Retirement Systems, 479 Versailles Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 or by calling (502)573-3266 
or visiting the website at http:ktrs.ky.gov. 

 
Benefits Provided - KTRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits.  Each employee covered by KTRS is 
entitled to a monthly benefit based upon their months of service multiplied by the average of 5 full fiscal years of salary 
(highest 5 or last 3 based on date of participation) upon attainment of KTRS specified age (or age and service 
combinations). Participants have a fully vested interest after completion of 60 months of service, 12 of which are current 
service.  
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Benefits Provided (continued) - Retirement benefits are generally determined as 2.5 percent of the employee's final 
3-year average compensation times the employee's years of service.  Employees with 5 years of continuous service 
are eligible to retire at age 60 or at any age with 27 years of service.  Employees are eligible for service-related disability 
benefits regardless of length of service.  Five years of service is required for nonservice-related disability eligibility.  
Disability benefits are determined in the same manner as retirement benefits but are payable immediately without an 
actuarial reduction.  Service and disability retirees are covered by a $5,000 life insurance benefit. 

 
Contributions - Benefit and contribution rates are established by state statute.  Per Kentucky Revised Statutes 
161.340, 161.550, and 161.565 contribution requirements of the active employees and the participating organizations 
are established and may be amended by the KTRS Board. Depending on the participant's personnel classification, 
employees were required to contribute 8.185 percent or 12.855 percent for fiscal years June 30, 2018 and 2017.  
KCTCS' contribution, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is 
expected to finance the cost of benefits earned (pension, health and life insurance) during the year, with an additional 
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability was 15.865 percent or 16.105 percent for fiscal years June 30, 2018 
and 2017.  Contributions to the pension plan from KCTCS were $4,663,172 and $5,813,635 for the years ended June 
30, 2018 and 2017. 

 
Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
- At June 30, 2018 and 2017, KCTCS reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that 
reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to KCTCS.  The amount recognized by KCTCS as its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension liability 
that was associated with KCTCS are as follows: 

 

 
 

KCTCS' net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016.  KCTCS' proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on actual contributions during the measurement period of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017.  At 
June 30, 2018 and 2017, KCTCS' proportion was 0.40 percent and 0.81 percent and the Commonwealth's proportion 
was 0.45 percent and 0.11 percent. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2018 2017

KCTCS proportionate share of the net pension liability 113,107,083$ 251,694,354$ 
State's proportionate share of the net pension liability
   associated with KCTCS 127,090,483   34,486,143     
         Total 240,197,566$ 286,180,497$ 
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Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
(continued) - For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, KCTCS' actuarially calculated pension (income) expense 
related to KTRS participants was $(14,694,408) and $16,841,181 and KCTCS recognized revenue of $8,743,067 and 
$2,782,740 for support provided by the Commonwealth.  KCTCS reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 629,708$            1,427,139$      
Changes in assumptions 13,646,288         7,690,954        
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
     plan investments -                        817,518           
Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS
     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                        100,174,719    
KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 4,663,172           -                     

     Total 18,939,168$       110,110,330$   

June 30, 2018

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                      3,615,259$      
Changes in assumptions 36,404,070         1,412,409        
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
     plan investments 7,364,963           -                     
Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS
     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                        24,018,293      
KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 5,813,635           -                     

     Total 49,582,668$       29,045,961$    

June 30, 2017
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Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
(continued) - As of June 30, 2018, KCTCS reported $4,663,172 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 
resulting from KCTCS' contributions subsequent to the measurement date, which will be recognized as a reduction of 
the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 

 
 
Actuarial Assumptions - Total pension liability (TPL) in the June 30, 2017 and 2016 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
     Valuation date                               June 30, 2016  
     Inflation                                          3.0 percent 
     Salary increases                            3.5 - 7.3% percent, average, including inflation 
     Investment rate of return               7.5 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including   
                                                           inflation 
     Municipal Bond Index Rate           3.56 percent 
     Single Equivalent Interest Rate     4.49 percent 

 
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, with 
adjustments for mortality improvements based on a projection of Scale BB to 2025, set forward two years for males 
and one year for females. 

 
The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience 
study for the period July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2015 adopted by the KTRS Board on November 19, 2016. 

 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-normal distribution 
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce 
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Years ended June 30:
2019 (30,121,128)$      
2020 (28,729,382)        
2021 (27,579,928)        
2022 (9,403,896)          

(95,834,334)$      
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Actuarial Assumptions (continued) - The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class for the June 30, 2017 and 2016 actuarial valuations as provided by KTRS' investment 
consultant, are summarized below: 
  

 

 
 

Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms Since Prior Measurement Date - The TPL as of June 30, 2017 
reflects the assumed municipal bond index rate increase from 3.01 percent to 3.56 percent, resulting in a change in 
the Single Equivalent Interest Rate (SEIR) from 4.20 percent to 4.49 percent. The impact of this change in the discount 
rate is a change in assumption that is added to expected TPL to determine the final TPL at June 30, 2017.  The final 
TPL as of June 30, 2016 reflects the assumed municipal bond index rate decrease from 3.82 percent to 3.01 percent, 
resulting in a change in the Single Equivalent Interest Rate (SEIR) from 4.88 percent to 4.20 percent. The impact of 
this change in the discount rate is a change in assumption that is added to expected TPL to determine the final TPL at 
June 30, 2016. 

 
Changes Since Measurement Date - There were no changes between the measurement date of the collective net 
pension liability and KCTCS reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on KCTCS' proportionate 
share of the collective net pension liability. 

 
Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 4.49 percent and 4.20 percent at June 30, 2017 and 
2016.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will 
be made at the current contribution rates and that employee contributions will be made at statutorily required rates.  
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members until the 2038 plan year. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments through 2037 and 
a municipal bond index rate of 3.56 percent was applied to all period of projected benefit payments after 2037.  
 
 
 
 
 

Target  Long-Term Expected Target  Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return Allocation Real Rate of Return

U.S. Equity 42% 4.40% 45% 6.40%
International Equity 20% 5.30% N/A N/A
Non U.S. Equity 0% N/A 17% 6.50%
Fixed Income 16% 1.50% 24% 1.60%
Additional Categories* 9% 3.60% N/A N/A
High Yield Bonds 0% N/A 4% 3.10%
Real Estate 5% 4.40% 4% 5.80%
Private Equity 6% 6.70% N/A N/A
Alternatives 0% N/A 4% 6.80%
Cash 2% 0.80% 2% 1.50%

Total 100% 100%

* Includes hedge funds, high yield and non-U.S. developed bonds.

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
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Sensitivity of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The 
following presents the net pension liability as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using 
a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 

 

 
 

 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the fiduciary net position is available in separately 
issued KTRS financial reports. 

 
Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS) 

 
The employees provided with pensions through the Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS) are in a defined 
benefit pension plan administered by the Kentucky Retirement System (KRS).  Kentucky Revised Statute 61.645 
grants the Board of Trustees of KRS the authority to administer KERS.  KERS issues a publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.  That report may be obtained by 
writing to Kentucky Retirement Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601-6124 
or by calling (502)696-8800. 

 
Benefits Provided - KERS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits.  Each employee covered by KERS is 
entitled to a monthly benefit based upon their months of service multiplied by the average of 5 full fiscal years of salary 
(highest 5 or last 5 based on date of participation) upon attainment of KERS specified age (or age and service 
combinations).  Participants have a fully vested interest after the completion of 60 months of service.   
 
Retirement benefits are determined as a percent of the employee's final 5-year average compensation times the 
employee's years of service.  Employees hired prior to September 1, 2008 can retire at any age with 27 years of service 
or at age 65 with 4 years of service.  Employees hired after September 1, 2008 can retire when their age plus years of 
service equals 87 (must be at least age 57) or at age 65 with 5 years of service.  Employees are eligible for service-
related disability benefits regardless of length of service.  Five years of service is required for nonservice-related 
disability eligibility.  Disability benefits are determined based on participation date.  Death benefits are based on age, 
months of service and whether the employee was active or retired.  
 
 
 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(3.49%) Rate (4.49%) (5.49%)

KCTCS' proportionate
   share of the Collective Net
   Pension Liability $140,205,713 $113,107,083 $90,866,365

June 30, 2018

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(3.20%) Rate (4.20%) (5.20%)

KCTCS' proportionate
   share of the Collective Net
   Pension Liability $308,775,230 $251,694,354 $204,846,687

June 30, 2017
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Contributions - Benefit and contribution rates are established by state statute.  Per Kentucky Revised Statute 
61.565(3) contribution requirements of the active employees and the participating organizations are established and 
may be amended by the KRS Board.  KERS participants hired with an effective date prior to September 1, 2008 
contribute 5 percent of their covered compensation; KCTCS contributed 49.47 percent and 48.59 percent for the years 
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.   
 
KERS participants hired with an effective date on or after September 1, 2008 contribute 6 percent of their covered 
compensation; KCTCS contributed 49.47 percent and 48.59 percent for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. These amounts were actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee 
contributions, is expected to finance the cost of benefits (41.06% and 40.24% for pension and 8.41% and 8.35% for 
health insurance for the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively) earned by employees during the year, with 
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.   
 
Contributions to the pension plan from KCTCS were $9,032,362 and $9,352,560 for the years ended June 30, 2018 
and 2017. 

 
Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
- At June 30, 2018 and 2017, KCTCS reported a liability of $201,114,505 and $193,546,514 for its proportionate share 
of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the TPL used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of those dates.  
 
KCTCS' proportion of the net pension liability was based on actual contributions made to KERS during the 
measurement period to determine the proportionate share to each participating employer.  At June 30, 2018 and 2017, 
KCTCS' proportion was 1.50 percent and 1.70 percent.  
 
For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, KCTCS' actuarially calculated pension expense was $16,247,739 and 
$16,105,494.  KCTCS reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources: 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 35,772$               1,295,083$        
Changes in assumptions 25,516,233           -                       
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
     plan investments 2,513,408             1,540,872          
Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS
     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                          20,706,554        
KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 9,032,362             -                       

     Total 37,097,775$         23,542,509$      

June 30, 2018
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Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
(continued) - 
 

 
 

As of June 30, 2018, KCTCS reported $9,032,362 as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from 
KCTCS' contributions subsequent to the measurement date, which will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2019.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

 
 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability (TPL) for KERS was determined by applying procedures to the 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 and 2016. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 and 
2016 used the following actuarial methods and assumptions applied to all prior periods included in the measurement: 

 
     Valuation date                              June 30, 2017 (rolled forward) and 2016 
     Experience study                         July 1, 2008 - June 30, 2013 
     Actuarial cost method                  Entry age normal 
     Amortization method                    Level percentage of payroll, closed 
     Remaining amortization period    26 years and 27 years, respectively 
     Asset valuation method                5-year smoothed market 
     Inflation                                        2.30% and 3.25% 
     Salary increase                            3.05% and 4.0%, average, including inflation 
     Investment rate of return              5.25% and 6.75% respectively, net of pension plan investment expense,  
                                                          including inflation 

 
 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 202,160$              -$                     
Changes in assumptions 14,660,793           -                       
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
     plan investments 2,971,722             -                       
Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS
     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                          13,978,085        
KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 11,293,263           -                       

     Total 29,127,938$         13,978,085$      

June 30, 2017

Years ended June 30:
2019 3,174,704$    
2020 1,352,368      
2021 272,797        
2022 (276,965)       

4,522,904$    



 

Continued 
 

44 

KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2018 and 2017 
 
 
10. Pension Plans (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions (continued) - The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality 
Table projected with Scale BB to 2013, multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females.  For healthy retired members 
and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013, 
setback for one year for females.  For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected 
with Scale BB to 2013, set back four years for males, is used for the period after disability retirement.   

 
The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies prepared every 
five years.  The most recent analysis is dated December 5, 2015.  Several factors are considered in evaluating the 
long-term rate of return assumption including long term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and 
a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, 
net of investment expense and inflation) were developed by the investment consultant for each major asset class.  
These ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation.  The assumption is 
intended to be a long term assumption and is not expected to change absent a significant change in the asset 
allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that alters expected returns in 
future years. 

 
The net pension liability as of June 30, 2017 is based on the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation rolled forward.  Deferred 
outflows and inflows related to differences between projected and actual earnings on plan investments are netted and 
amortized over a closed five-year period. 
  

The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Target  Long-Term Nominal Target  Long-Term Nominal
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return

Combined Equity 35% 13.13% 50% 5.30%
Global Bonds 10% 2.63% N/A N/A
Global Credit 17% 3.63% N/A N/A
Intermediate Duration Fixed Income N/A N/A 11% 1.00%
Custom KRS Fixed Income N/A N/A 11% 3.33%
Core Real Estate 5% 6.63% 5% 4.25%
Absolute Return 10% 5.63% N/A N/A
Real Return 10% 5.13% N/A N/A
Diversified Hedge Funds N/A N/A 10% 4.00%
Private Equity 10% 8.25% 2% 8.00%
Diversified Inflation Strategies N/A N/A 8% 3.15%
Cash Equivalent 3% 1.88% 3% -0.25%

Total 100% 100%

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
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Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms Since Measurement Date - The final TPL as of June 30, 2017 reflects 
a decrease in the assumed investment rate of return from 6.75 percent to 5.25 percent; a decrease in the assumed 
rate of inflation from 3.25 percent to 2.30 percent which also resulted in a 0.95% decrease in the salary increase 
assumption at all years of service.  The payroll growth assumption was changed from 4.00% to 0.00%.  The final TPL 
as of June 30, 2016 reflects a decrease in the assumed investment rate of return from 7.50 percent to 6.75 percent; a 
decrease in the assumed rate of inflation from 3.50 percent to 3.25 percent; a decrease in the assumed rate of wage 
inflation from 1.00 percent to 0.75 percent and a decrease in the payroll growth assumption from 4.50 percent to 4.00 
percent. The assumed rates of retirement, withdrawal and disability were updated to more accurately reflect 
experience. 

 
Changes Since Measurement Date - There were no changes between the measurement date of the collective net 
pension liability and the KCTCS reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on KCTCS proportionate 
share of the collective net pension liability. 

 
Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.25 percent and 6.75 percent at 
June 30, 2017 and 2016.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions 
from plan members and employers will be made at the actuarially determined contribution rate.  Based on those 
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position and future contributions were projected to be available to make 
all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability.  The projection of cash flows used to determine the single discount rate assumes that the Commonwealth of 
Kentucky contributes the actuarially determined contribution rate in all future years. 

 
Sensitivity of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The 
following presents the net pension liability as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using 
a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 

 

 
 

 
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plans' fiduciary net position is available 
in the separately issued KERS financial reports. 
 

 
 
 

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(4.25%) Rate (5.25%) (6.25%)

KCTCS' proportionate share of the
   Collective Net Pension Liability $229,627,164 $201,114,505 $177,407,635

June 30, 2018

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)

KCTCS' proportionate share of the
   Collective Net Pension Liability $218,044,000 $193,546,514 $172,958,000

June 30, 2017
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The following tables summarize KCTCS' net pension liability, deferred inflows and outflows of resources and actuarially 
determined pension expense for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

 

 
 

 
  June 30, 2017 

       
  KERS  KTRS  Total 

       
Net pension liability   $193,546,514    $251,694,354    $445,240,868  
Deferred outflows of resources       29,127,938        49,582,668        78,710,606  
Deferred inflows of resources       13,978,085        29,045,961        43,024,046  
Actuarially determined pension expense       16,105,494        16,841,181        32,946,675  

 
 
11. Postemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB) 
 
KCTCS employees hired prior to July 1, 2009 participate in either the KCTCS Retiree Health OPEB Plan, the Kentucky 
Teachers Retirement System OPEB Plan or the Kentucky Employees Retirement System OPEB Plan depending on 
the retirement plan in which they participate.  Employees hired after July 1, 2009 and before January 1, 2014 participate 
in either the Kentucky Teachers Retirement System OPEB Plan or the Kentucky Employees Retirement System OPEB 
Plan.  Each OPEB plan is described in detail in the following section. 
 
Kentucky Teachers Retirement System (KTRS) OPEB Plan 
 
The KTRS OPEB Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan with a special funding situation.  
The plan includes medical insurance and life insurance plans and is administered by the Teachers Retirement System 
of the State of Kentucky (TRS).  TRS publishes a financial report located at https://trs.ky.gov/financial-reports-
information.   
 
Benefit and contribution rates are established by state statute.  Contribution requirements of active employees and 
participating organizations are established and may be amended by the TRS Board.   
 
Medical Insurance Plan 
 
Plan Description - Kentucky Revised Statute 161.675 requires KTRS to provide post-employment healthcare benefits 
to eligible members and dependents. The KTRS Medical Insurance benefit is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined 
benefit plan with a special funding situation. Changes made to the medical plan may be made by the KTRS Board of 
Trustees, the Kentucky Department of Employee Insurance and the General Assembly. 
 
 

KERS KTRS Total

Net pension liability 201,114,505$ 113,107,083$ 314,221,588$ 
Deferred outflows of resources 37,097,775     18,939,168     56,036,943     
Deferred inflows of resources 23,542,509     110,110,330   133,652,839   
Actuarially determined pension expense (income) 16,247,739     (14,694,408)    1,553,331       

June 30, 2018

https://trs.ky.gov/financial-reports-information
https://trs.ky.gov/financial-reports-information
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Benefits Provided - To be eligible for medical benefits, the member must have retired either for service or disability. 
The medical insurance plan provides coverage to members under the age of 65 through the Kentucky Employees 
Health Plan administered by the Kentucky Department of Employee Insurance.  Retired members are provided a 
monthly supplement to be used for payment of their health insurance premium. The TRS Board approves the amount 
of the supplement provided.  Retired members pay the amount of the premium that exceeds the supplement.  Once 
retired members and eligible spouses reach age 65 and are Medicare eligible, coverage is obtained through the KTRS 
Medicare Eligible Health Plan. 
 
Contributions - In order to fund the post-retirement healthcare benefit 7.5 percent of the gross annual payroll of 
members is contributed. KTRS participants contribute 3.75 percent of their covered compensation, 0.75 percent is 
funded by state appropriation and KCTCS contributes 3.00 percent.  The state contributes the net cost of health 
insurance premiums for members who retired on or after July 1, 2010 who are in the non-Medicare eligible group. 
Premiums collected from retirees and investment interest help meet the medical expenses of the plan. For the year 
ended June 30, 2018, KCTCS contributed $908,087 to the KTRS medical insurance plan.  

 
Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied 
to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
   Valuation date    June 30, 2016 
   Measurement date    June 30, 2017 
   Inflation     3.00 percent 
   Real wage growth    0.50 percent 
   Wage inflation    3.50 percent 
   Salary increases    3.50 – 7.20 percent, including inflation 
   Investment rate of return               8.00 percent, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation 
   Healthcare cost trend rate               Pre-65: 7.75% decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 5% by FY2023.     
                                                                Post-65:  5.75% decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 5% by FY2020.        
   Medicare Part B Premiums                  1.02% with an ultimate rate of 5% by FY2029. 
   Municipal bond index rate               3.56% 
   Discount rate                            8.00% 
   Single equivalent interest rate  8.00%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including  
                                                                inflation  
 
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected to 2025 with projection scale BB and 
set forward two years for males and one year for females for the period after service retirement and for dependent 
beneficiaries. The RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table set forward two years for males and seven years for females is 
used for the period after disability retirement.  The remaining actuarial assumptions (e.g. initial per capita costs, health 
care cost trends, rate of plan participation, rates of plan election, etc.) used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based 
on a review of recent plan experience done concurrently with the June 30, 2017 valuation.  
 
The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a log-normal distribution 
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce 
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
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11. Postemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions (continued) – The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for 
each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

 
 
Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 8.00%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution 
rates and the employer contributions will be made at statutorily required rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB 
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The 
following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 
 

 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using 
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare 
cost trend rates: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

30 Year  
Target  Expected Geometric

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Global Equity 60.00% 5.10%
Fixed Income 9.00% 1.20%
Real Estate 4.50% 4.00%
Private Equity 5.50% 6.60%
High Yield 10.00% 4.30%
Other Additional Categories* 10.00% 3.30%
Cash (LIBOR) 1.00% 0.50%

Total 100%

* Modeled as 50% High Yield and 50% Bank Loans

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(7%) (8%) (9%)

Net OPEB liability $38,373,000 $22,671,000 $28,440,000

1% Decrease
Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 1% Increase4
(6.75% and 4.75% 
decreasing to 4%)

(7.75% and 5.75% 
decreasing to 5%)

(8.75% and 6.75% 
decreasing to 6%)

Net OPEB liability $27,597,000 $22,671,000 $39,565,000
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OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources - At 
June 30, 2018, KCTCS reported a net OPEB liability of $22,671,000 for its proportionate share of the collective net 
OPEB liability that reflected a reduction for state OPEB support provided to KCTCS. The collective net OPEB liability 
was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the collective net OPEB liability was 
based on a projection of KCTCS’s long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, KCTCS’s proportion was 0.64%. 

 
The amount recognized by KCTCS as its proportionate share of the OPEB liability, the related State support, and the 
total portion of the net OPEB liability that was associated with KCTCS were as follows: 
 

 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, KCTCS recognized OPEB expense of $639,218 associated with the KTRS medical 
insurance plan.  At June 30, 2018, KCTCS reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the KTRS 
medical insurance plan from the following sources: 
 

 
 
Deferred Outflows resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the fiscal 
year will be included as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2019.  Amounts reported as 
deferred inflows of resources related to the KTRS medical insurance plan will be recognized in OPEB expense as 
follows: 

 
 
OPEB plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in 
the separately issued KTRS financial report.  

 
 
 

2018

KCTCS proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 22,671,000$   
State's proportionate share of the net pension OPEB
   associated with KCTCS 10,281,000     
         Total 32,952,000$   

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB
     plan investments -$                        233,000$           
KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 908,087               -                       

     Total 908,087$              233,000$           

2019 (59,000)$       
2020 (59,000)         
2021 (59,000)         
2022 (56,000)         

(233,000)$      

Years ended June 30
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Changes of benefit terms - With the passage of House Bill 471, the eligibility for non-single subsidies (NSS) for the 
KEHP-participating members who retired prior to July 1, 2010 is restored, but the state will only finance, via its KEHP 
“Shared Responsibility” contributions, the costs of the NSS related to those KEHP-participating members who retired 
on or after July 1, 2010. 

 
Methods and assumptions used in the actuarially determined contributions - The actuarially determined 
contribution rates, as a percentage of payroll, used to determine the actuarially determined contribution amounts are 
calculated as of the indicated valuation date. The following actuarial methods and assumptions were used to determine 
contribution rates reported in that schedule for the year ending June 30, 2018: 

 
 Valuation date     June 30, 2016 
 Actuarial cost method    Entry Age Normal 
 Amortization method    Level Percent of Payroll 
 Amortization period    30 years, Open 
 Asset valuation method    Five-year smoothed value 
 Inflation      3.00% 
 Real wage growth    0.50% 
 Wage inflation     3.50% 
 Salary increases, including wage inflation 3.50% - 7.20% 
 Discount rate     8.00% 
 Health care cost trends 

Under 65 7.75% for FY 2017 decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.00% by 
FY 2023 

Ages 65 and older 5.75% for FY 2017 decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.00% by 
FY 2020 

Medicare Part B premiums 1.02% for FY 2017 with an ultimate rate of 5.00% by 2029 
Under age 65 claims The current premium charged by KEHP is used as the base 

cost and is projected forward using only the health care trend 
assumption (no implicit rate subsidy is recognized). 

 
Life Insurance Plan 

 
Plan Description - KTRS administers the life insurance plan as provided by Kentucky Revised Statute 161.655 to 
eligible active and retired members. The KTRS Life Insurance benefit is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined 
benefit plan. Changes made to the life insurance plan may be made by the KTRS Board of Trustees and the General 
Assembly. 
 
Benefits Provided - The life insurance plan provides a benefit of $5,000 to members who retire based on service or 
disability and $2,000 to active contributing members.  The life insurance benefit is payable upon the death of the 
member.   
 
Contributions - In order to fund the post-retirement life insurance benefit, 0.03 percent of the gross annual payroll of 
members is contributed by the state. In addition, KCTCS contributes 0.03 percent of each participants covered 
compensation.  
 
. 
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Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied 
to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
   Valuation date   June 30, 2016 
   Measurement date   June 30, 2017 
   Inflation    3.00 percent 
   Real wage growth   0.50 percent 
   Wage inflation   3.50 percent 
   Salary increases   3.50 – 7.20 percent, including inflation 
   Investment rate of return              7.50 percent, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation 
   Municipal bond index rate              3.56% 
   Discount rate                           7.50% 
   Single equivalent interest rate 7.50%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation  
 
Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected to 2025 with projection scale BB and 
set forward two years for males and one year for females for the period after service retirement and for dependent 
beneficiaries. The RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table set forward two years for males and seven years for females is 
used for the period after disability retirement.  The remaining actuarial assumptions (e.g. initial per capita costs, rate 
of plan participation, rates of plan election,  etc.) used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on a review of recent 
plan experience done concurrently with the June 30, 2017 valuation.  The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB 
plan investments was determined using a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected 
future real rates of return are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
 
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized 
in the following table: 
 

 
 
   
 

30 Year  
Target  Expected Geometric

Asset Class* Allocation Rate of Return

U.S. Large Cap Equity 38.40% 4.30%
U.S. Small Cap Equity 2.60% 4.80%
Developed Int'l Equity 15.80% 5.20%
Emerging Markets Equity 4.20% 5.40%
Fixed Income - Inv Grade 16.00% 1.20%
Real Estate 6.00% 4.00%
Private Equity 7.00% 6.60%
High Yield 2.00% 4.30%
Other Additional Categories** 7.00% 3.30%
Cash (LIBOR) 1.00% 0.50%

Total 100%

** Modeled as 50% High Yield and 50% Bank Loans

* As the life insurance plan investment policy is subject to change, the 
above reflects the pension allocation and returns that achieve the 
target 7.5% long-term rate of return.
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Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability for life insurance was 7.50%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made at statutorily 
required rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB 
liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate  - The following presents the net OPEB 
liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 
 

 
 
OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources - At 
June 30, 2018, KCTCS reported a net OPEB liability of $243,000 for its proportionate share of the collective net OPEB 
liability that reflected a reduction for state OPEB support provided to KCTCS. The collective net OPEB liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the collective net OPEB liability was 
based on a projection of KCTCS’s long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, KCTCS’s proportion was 1.11%. 

 
The amount recognized by KCTCS as its proportionate share of the OPEB liability, the related State support, and the 
total portion of the net OPEB liability that was associated with KCTCS were as follows: 
 

 
 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, KCTCS recognized OPEB expense of $30,364 associated with the KTRS life 
insurance plan.  At June 30, 2018, KCTCS reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the KTRS 
life insurance plan from the following sources: 
 

 
 
 
 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)

Net OPEB liability $404,000 $243,000 $111,000

2018

KCTCS proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 243,000$        
State's proportionate share of the net pension OPEB
   associated with KCTCS -                    
         Total 243,000$        

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB
     plan investments 51,000$               
KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 5,322                   

     Total 56,322$               
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OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
(continued) - Of the total amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB, $5,322 resulting from 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the fiscal year will be included as a reduction 
of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2019.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
related to the KTRS life insurance plan will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

 
 
OPEB plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in 
the separately issued KTRS financial report.  
 
Kentucky Employees Retirement System (KERS) OPEB Plan 
 
The KERS OPEB Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan, which was available to KCTCS 
employees hired prior to January 1, 2014.  This plan provides medical insurance for eligible retirees and is administered 
by Kentucky Retirement System (KRS) who publishes a financial report located at https://kyret.ky.gov.      
 
Contributions - Benefit and contribution rates are established by state statute.  Per Kentucky Revised Statute 
61.565(3) contribution requirements of active employees and participating organizations are established and may be 
amended by the KRS Board.  KERS participants hired with an effective date on or after September 1, 2008 contribute 
1 percent of their covered compensation. KERS participants hired prior to September 1, 2008 do not contribute to the 
plan but do receive plan benefits. KCTCS contributed 8.41 percent for the year ended June 30, 2018. This rate was 
actuarially determined to produce an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance 
the cost of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued 
liability. Contributions to the KERS OPEB plan from KCTCS were $1,852,547 and $1,939,354 and the implicit subsidy 
was $296,640 and $154,430 for the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied 
to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
   Valuation date   June 30, 2016 rolled forward to 2017 
   Measurement date   June 30, 2017 
   Inflation    2.30 percent 
   Payroll growth rate                              0.00 percent 
   Salary increases   3.05 percent 
   Investment rate of return  6.25 percent 
   Healthcare cost trend rate              Beginning January 1, 2019:  Pre-65: 7.25% decreasing to an ultimate  
                                                               trend rate of 4.05% over 13 years.  Post-65:  5.10% decreasing to an   
                                                               ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over 11 years.  
 
 
 

2019 12,000$        
2020 12,000          
2021 12,000          
2022 12,000          
2023 3,000            

51,000$        

Years ended June 30

https://kyret.ky.gov/


 

Continued 
 

54 

KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2018 and 2017 
 
 
11. Postemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions (continued) – Mortality rates for active members were based on RP‐2000 Combined Mortality 
Table projected with Scale BB to 2013.  Mortality rates for healthy retired members and beneficiaries were based on 
the RP‐2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013, set‐back for one year for females. For disabled 
members, mortality rates were based on the RP‐2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 
2013, set back four years for males.  The assumed investment rate of return was changed from 7.50 percent to 6.25 
percent.  The inflation assumption was changed from 3.25 percent to 2.30 percent, which also resulted in a 0.95 
percent decrease in the salary assumption at all years of service.  The payroll growth assumption was changed from 
4.00 percent to 0.00 percent.  The discount rate was changed from 6.90 percent to 5.83 percent. 
 
The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the 
following table: 

 
 
Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.83 percent for June 30, 2017.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions will be made at rates equal to 
the actuarially determined contribution rates.  The discount rate determination used an expected rate of return of 6.25% 
and a municipal bond rate of 3.56%, as reported in Fidelity Index’s “20 –Year Municipal GO AA Index” as of June 30, 
2017. However, the cost associated with the implicit employer subsidy was not included in the calculation of the 
actuarial determined contributions, and any cost associated with the implicit subsidy will not be paid out of the KRS’ 
trusts. Therefore, the municipal bond rate was applied to future expected benefit payments associated with the implicit 
subsidy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Target  Long-Term Nominal
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Combined Equity 35.00% 13.82%
Global Bonds 4.00% 2.63%
Global Credit 2.00% 3.63%
High Yield 7.00% 5.75%
Emerging Market Debt 5.00% 5.50%
Private Credit 10.00% 8.75%
Core Real Estate 5.00% 7.63%
Absolute Return 10.00% 5.63%
Real Return 10.00% 6.13%
Private Equity 10.00% 8.25%
Cash Equivalent 2.00% 1.88%

Total 100%
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Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The 
following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 
 
 

 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using 
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare 
cost trend rates: 
 

 
 

 
  OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources–  

KCTCS’ net OPEB liability of $38,094,261 was measured as of June 30, 2017 and its proportionate share of the 
collective net OPEB liability was 1.50 percent as of June 30, 2017.  The proportionate share was determined using 
employers’ actual contributions for fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. For the year ended June 30, 2018, KCTCS 
recognized OPEB expense of $1,629,800 associated with the KERS OPEB Plan.  At June 30, 2018, KCTCS reported 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the KERS OPEB Plan from the following sources: 
 

 
 
Of the total amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB, $2,149,187 resulting from 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the fiscal year will be included as a reduction 
of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2019.   
 
 
 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(4.83%) (5.83%) (6.83%)

Net OPEB liability $44,536,793 $38,094,261 $32,740,115

1% Decrease
Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 1% Increase

(6.5% and 4.5% 
decreasing to 4%)

(7.5% and 5.5% 
decreasing to 5%)

(8.5% and 6.5% 
decreasing to 6%)

Net OPEB liability $32,367,788 $38,094,261 $45,284,868

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                        47,141$             
Changes in assumptions 4,987,689             -                       
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB
     plan investments -                          493,056             
Changes in proportion and differences between KCTCS
     contributions and proportionate share of contributions -                          279,560             
KCTCS contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,149,187             -                       

     Total 7,136,876$           819,757$           
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OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
(continued) - Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the KERS OPEB Plan 
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

 
 
OPEB plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in 
the separately issued KERS financial report. 
 
KCTCS Retiree Health OPEB Plan 
 
The KCTCS Retiree Health OPEB Plan (“OPEB Plan”) is a single-employer defined benefit other postemployment 
benefit plan which is administered by KCTCS and does not issue a stand-alone financial report.  This OPEB plan 
provides healthcare benefits for eligible retirees who participate in the 403(b) defined contribution plan.  The OPEB 
plan is funded by an irrevocable IRS Section 115 trust which KCTCS established during the year ended June 30, 2013 
with a contribution of $163.7 million.    This OPEB plan was closed to new entrants as of July 1, 2009. 
 
Employees and surviving spouses participating in this plan include former University of Kentucky faculty and staff; 
KCTCS 403(b) participants with a hire date prior to July 1, 2009; University of Kentucky opt-over retirees. 
 
Benefits Provided - Benefits are provided through a third-party insurer and cover the partial cost of the monthly health 
insurance premium which is based on Medicare retiree status and stated Medicare coverage rates.  Pre-Medicare 
eligible employees have the same healthcare plan choices as active employees.  Post-Medicare eligible employees 
receive monthly benefits determined to meet the premium obligations for the Medicare Advantage Plan.  
 
Contributions - There were no contributions made to the KCTCS OPEB Plan during the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2018. 
 
The KCTCS OPEB covered the following as of June 30, 2017:  
 

 
Net OPEB Asset - The net OPEB asset was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total OPEB liability used to 
calculate the net OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2017. 
 
 
 
 

2019 1,039,077$    
2020 1,039,077      
2021 1,039,077      
2022 1,039,077      
2023 11,624          

4,167,932$    

Years ended June 30

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 908           
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments -               
Active employees 1,581        

  Total 2,489        
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Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 
   Valuation date   July 1, 2017 
   Healthcare inflation   2.5 percent 
   Salary increases   3.0 percent 
   Investment rate of return  7.0 percent 
   Healthcare cost trend rate              For June 30, 2017, 7.5% KCTCS (Pre-65 and Post-65); 7% UK Pre-65;    
                                                               6% UK Post-65 to an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent for 2038 and later    
                                                               years.                      
 
Mortality rates for healthy lives were based on RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table for Males and Females 
Backed Off to 2006 and Projected Generationally with Scale MP-2016.  Mortality rates for disabled lives were based 
on RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table for Males and Females Backed Off to 2006 and Projected Generationally with 
Scale MP-2016. 
 
The target allocation and best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the 
following table: 
 

 
 
Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.0 percent for June 30, 2017.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions will be made at rates equal to 
the actuarially determined contribution rates.  Based on those assumptions, the fiduciary net position was projected to 
be available to make all projected payments for current active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on the plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total OPEB liability. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Target Allocation

Long-Term 
Expected Real Rate 

of Return

Global Equity 55.00% 9.40%
Public Natural Resources 5.00% 8.60%
Hedge Strategies 16.00% 6.70%
Core Bonds 10.00% 4.50%
Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities 3.00% 3.90%
Credit 6.00% 10.10%
Private Real Estate 5.00% 6.40%

Total 100%

Asset Class
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11. Postemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB) (Continued) 

 
Changes in the Net OPEB (Asset) Liability - 
 

 
 
Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms Since Prior Measurement Date - Per capita costs were decreased 
by an average of 1.4% based on updated premium information and census data.  The discount rate was increased 
from 6.00% to 7.00%. The salary increase was set at 3.00%. Mortality rates for healthy employees were updated from 
RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table for Males and Females Projected Generationally with scale MP-2014 to 
RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table for Males and Females Backed off to 2006 and Projected Generationally 
with Scale MP-2016.  Mortality rates for disabled employees were updated from RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table for 
Males and Females Projected Generationally with scale MP-2014 to RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table for Males and 
Females Backed off to 2006 and Projected Generationally with Scale MP-2016.  Healthcare and contribution trend 
rates were updated from an initial rate of 7% in fiscal 2016 and an ultimate rate of 4% in 2036 to an initial rate of 7.5%, 
7% and 6% in fiscal 2018 for KCTCS, UK Pre-65 and UK Post-65, respectively, and an ultimate rate of 4.5% in fiscal 
2038.  The lapse rate for current and future retirees and their spouses was updated from 10% to 3%.  The participation 
rate was updated from 95% to 90%.  Retirees electing spousal coverage was updated from 30% to 15%.  Future 
retirees who have waived coverage and are assumed to stay without coverage until age 65 and to elect coverage at 
age 65 was updated from 100% to 75%.  The impact of the Affordable Care Act excise tax on high-cost healthcare 
plans was estimated and updated.  
 
Changes Since Measurement Date - There were no changes between the measurement date of the net OPEB asset 
and KCTCS’ reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on the net OPEB asset. 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The 
following presents the net OPEB asset, as well as what the net OPEB asset would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 

 

 
 

Total OPEB 
Liability

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

Net OPEB 
Liability 
(Asset)

Balances at 6/30/17 191,648,950$ 170,932,728$     20,716,222$  
Changes for the year:

Service cost 4,839,271       -                       4,839,271      
Interest 11,366,312     -                       11,366,312    

(39,171,680)    -                       (39,171,680)   
Changes in assumptions (1,929,172)      -                       (1,929,172)     
Contributions - employer -                    -                       -                   
Net investment income -                    18,684,370        (18,684,370)   
Benefit payments (3,356,637)      (3,356,637)         -                   
Administrative expense -                    (143,679)            143,679        

Net changes (28,251,906)    15,184,054        (43,435,960)   

Balances at 6/30/18 163,397,044$ 186,116,782$     (22,719,738)$ 

Differences between expected and actual 
experience

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%)

Net OPEB liability (asset) 3,638,091$    (22,719,738)$ (43,982,586)$ 
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11. Postemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB) (Continued) 

 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
(continued) - The following presents the net OPEB asset, as well as what the net OPEB asset would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the 
current healthcare cost trend rates: 
 

 
 
 
OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources - For the year ended 
June 30, 2018, KCTCS recognized OPEB expense of $2,725,607 associated with the KCTCS OPEB Plan.  At June 
30, 2018, KCTCS reported deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 
 

 
 
Amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

 
 
Payable to the KCTCS Plan - At June 30, 2018, KCTCS had no amounts payable for contributions to the KCTCS 
plan.  
 
 
 
 

1% Decrease
Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 1% Increase

(6.5%, 6% and 
5% decreasing to 

3.5%)

(7.5%, 7% and 
6% decreasing to 

4.5%)

(8.5%, 8% and 
7% decreasing to 

5.5%)

Net OPEB liability (asset) (45,007,866)$      (22,719,738)$      4,927,144$         

Deferred 
Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 39,171,680$  
Changes of assumptions 1,929,172     
Difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments 5,060,715     

    Total 46,161,567$  

2019 (10,045,297)$ 
2020 (10,045,297)   
2021 (10,045,297)   
2022 (10,045,297)   
2023 (5,980,379)     

(46,161,567)$ 

Years ended June 30
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11. Postemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
The following table summarizes KCTCS’ net OPEB liability (asset), deferred inflows and outflows of resources and 
OPEB expense recognized for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018: 
 

 
 
The KCTCS Retiree Health Plan is reported under GASB Statement 45 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  Plan 
participants as of the measurement date of April 1, 2017 totaled 2,489, which included 1,581 active participants and 
908 retired participants.  The following table shows the components of KCTCS' annual OPEB cost under GASB 
Statement 45, the amount contributed to the Plan and the changes in KCTCS' net OPEB (prepaid) obligation for the 
year ended June 30, 2017 (amounts in thousands), as determined based on the July 1, 2017 valuation: 
 

 
  

KCTCS' annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net prepaid OPEB 
for 2017 is as follows (amounts in thousands): 
 

 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events far into the future.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan 
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  The schedule of funding progress, presented 
as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued 
liabilities for benefits. 

 

KTRS KERS KCTCS Total

Net OPEB liability 22,914,000$       38,094,261$       -$                      61,008,261$       
Net OPEB (asset) -$                      -$                      (22,719,738)$      (22,719,738)$      
Deferred outflows 964,409$           7,136,876$         -$                      8,101,285$         
Deferred inflows 233,000$           819,757$           46,161,567$       47,214,324$       
OPEB expense recognized 669,582$           1,629,800$         2,725,607$         5,024,989$         

Annual required contribution (1,607)$ 
Interest (206)      
Amortization 3,647    

Annual OPEB cost 1,834    
Contributions made -           

Decrease/increase in net OPEB obligation 1,834    

Net prepaid OPEB, beginning of year (3,441)   

Net prepaid OPEB, end of year (1,607)$ 

Percentage of
Annual Annual OPEB Net Prepaid

OPEB Cost Cost Contributed OPEB

1,834$          0.0% (1,607)$      
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12. Commitments and Contingencies 

 
Construction Commitments - The estimated cost to complete construction projects under contract at June 30, 2018 is 
$84.5 million.  The projects are to be financed principally by proceeds from a state bond lease agreement and 
appropriations from the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 

 
Claims and Litigation - KCTCS is a party to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of 
business.  Among these matters is the “Bennett v. KCTCS, et al” class action lawsuit, which was filed on October 1, 
2018 in Franklin Circuit Court.  This lawsuit names KCTCS as a party defendant for how KCTCS collects debts through 
the Department of Revenue.  As of October 22, 2018, KCTCS management is unable to estimate the likelihood or range 
of any potential liability, and accordingly, no amounts are recorded in the financial statements at June 30, 2018.  
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11. Postemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB) (Continued) 
 
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by 
the employer and the plan members) and includes the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the 
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.  The actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations. 

 
The July 1, 2017 actuarial valuation calculation used the entry age normal (EAN) method.  Under the EAN, the normal 
cost (NC) for each participant is calculated as a level percentage of pay that would exactly fund each participant's 
benefits if contributed from their entry age in the Plan to their assumed retirement age.  The NC is the portion of the 
present value which is allocated to the valuation year.   
 
The actuarial assumptions include a 7.0 percent discount rate as of July 1, 2017.  Assumptions also include an annual 
healthcare cost trend rate of 7.5 percent (for KCTCS benefit employees), 7.0 percent (for former University of Kentucky 
employees, under age 65) and 6.0 percent (for former University of Kentucky employees, age 65 and over) initially, 
reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent after twenty years. 

 
Funded 

 
 

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the value of plan assets held within the KCTCS Other Postemployment 
Benefits Trust increased to $186.1 million.  The actuarial accrued liability for benefits is estimated to be $163.4 
million as of June 30, 2017.   

 

Actuarial AAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued (Funded)/ Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered

Date Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

July 1, 2017 186,117$ 163,397$ (22,720)$ 114% 137,768$ -16.49%
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12. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 
 
Government Grants - KCTCS receives financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants and 
awards.  The expenditure of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and 
conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies.  Any disallowed claims 
resulting from such audits could become a liability of the applicable fund.  KCTCS has had no disallowed claims in the 
past.  In the opinion of management, such potential disallowed claims, if any, would not have a material adverse effect 
on the overall financial position of KCTCS at June 30, 2018. 
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2018 2017 2016 2015

KCTCS' proportionate share of the net pension liability 113,107$        251,694$        219,423$        209,139$        
State's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability 127,090 34,486 33,391 36,216

240,197$        286,180$        252,814$        245,355$        
KCTCS' proportion of the net pension liability 0.40% 0.81% 0.90% 0.97%
KCTCS' covered payroll 35,898$         39,577$         43,116$         46,018$         
KCTCS' proportionate share of the net pension liability 
   as a percentage of its covered payroll 315.08% 635.96% 508.91% 454.47%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 39.83% 35.22% 42.49% 45.59%

Note: This table represents data that is one year in arrears.

2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution 4,663$           5,814$           6,383$           6,668$           
Contributions in relation to the contractually 
   required contribution 4,663$           5,814$           6,383$           6,668$           
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
KCTCS covered payroll 34,408$         35,898$         39,577$         43,116$         
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 13.55% 16.20% 14.21% 13.73%

Note:  These are 10-year schedules.  However, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented
retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Changes in assumptions:  For fiscal year 2018, the KTRS plan discount rate increased from 4.20 percent to 4.49 percent.  For fiscal year 2017, the 
KTRS plan discount rate decreased from 4.88 percent to 4.20 percent.  For fiscal year 2016, there was a decrease in the assumed investment rate of 
return from 7.75 percent to 7.50 percent; a decrease in the assumed rate of inflation from 3.50 percent to 3.25 percent; a decrease in the assumed 
rate of wage inflation from 1.00 percent to 0.75 percent and a decrease in the payroll growth assumption from 4.50 percent to 4.00 percent.

Changes in assumptions:  For fiscal year 2018, the KTRS plan discount rate increased from 4.20 percent to 4.49 percent.  For fiscal year 2017, the 
KTRS plan discount rate decreased from 4.88 percent to 4.20 percent.  For fiscal year 2016, there was a decrease in the assumed investment rate of 
return from 7.75 percent to 7.50 percent; a decrease in the assumed rate of inflation from 3.50 percent to 3.25 percent; a decrease in the assumed 
rate of wage inflation from 1.00 percent to 0.75 percent and a decrease in the payroll growth assumption from 4.50 percent to 4.00 percent.

Schedule of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Kentucky Teacher's Retirement System

(amounts in thousands)

Schedule of KCTCS Contribution
Kentucky Teacher's Retirement Plan

(amounts in thousands)
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2018 2017 2016 2015

KCTCS' proportionate share of the net pension liability 201,115$        193,547$    186,537$ 174,855$ 
KCTCS' proportion of the net pension liability 1.50% 1.70% 1.86% 1.95%
KCTCS' covered payroll 23,258$         27,453$      30,224$   32,208$   
KCTCS' proportionate share of the net pension liability 
  as a percentage of its covered payroll 864.71% 705.01% 617.18% 542.89%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 13.30% 14.80% 18.83% 22.32%

Note:  This table represents data that is one year in arrears.

2018 2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution 9,032$           9,353$       10,544$   11,722$   
Contributions in relation to the contractually 
  required contribution 9,032$           9,353$       10,544$   11,722$   
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                  -$              -$            -$            
KCTCS covered payroll 22,028$         23,258$      27,453$   30,224$   
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 41.00% 40.21% 55.34% 34.57%

Note: These are 10-year schedules.  However, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 
retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Changes in assumptions:  For fiscal year 2018, the KERS plan discount rate and assumed investment rate of return decreased from 6.75 
percent to 5.25 percent, the assumed rate of inflation decreased from 3.25 percent to 2.30 percent which also resulted in a 0.95% decrease 
in the salary increase assumption at all years of service.  The payroll growth assumption decreased from 4.00 percent to 0.00 percent.  For 
fiscal year 2017, the KERS plan discount rate and assumed investment rate of return decreased from 7.50 percent to 6.75 percent, the 
assumed rate of inflation decreased from 3.50 percent to 3.25 percent, the assumed rate of wage inflation decreased from 1.00 percent to 
0.75 percent, the payroll growth assumption decreased from 4.50 percent to 4.00 percent.  The assumed rates of retirement, withdrawal and 
disability were updated to more accurately reflect experience. 

(amounts in thousands)

Schedule of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Kentucky Employees Retirement System

(amounts in thousands)

Schedule of KCTCS' Contribution
Kentucky Employees Retirement Plan

Changes in assumptions:  For fiscal year 2018, the KERS plan discount rate and assumed investment rate of return decreased from 6.75 
percent to 5.25 percent, the assumed rate of inflation decreased from 3.25 percent to 2.30 percent which also resulted in a 0.95% decrease 
in the salary increase assumption at all years of service.  The payroll growth assumption decreased from 4.00 percent to 0.00 percent.  For 
fiscal year 2017, the KERS plan discount rate and assumed investment rate of return decreased from 7.50 percent to 6.75 percent, the 
assumed rate of inflation decreased from 3.50 percent to 3.25 percent, the assumed rate of wage inflation decreased from 1.00 percent to 
0.75 percent, the payroll growth assumption decreased from 4.50 percent to 4.00 percent.  The assumed rates of retirement, withdrawal and 
disability were updated to more accurately reflect experience. 
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KCTCS' proportion of the net other postemployment benefit liability 0.64%
KCTCS' proportionate share of the net other postemployment benefit liability 22,671$   
KCTCS' covered payroll 35,898$   
KCTCS' proportionate share of the net other postemployment benefit liability
  as a percentage of its covered payroll 63.15%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total other postemployment benefit
 liability 21.18%

Note:  This table represents data that is one year in arrears.
These are 10-year schedules.  However, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 
retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Schedule of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability
Kentucky Teacher's Retirement System - Medical Insurance Plan

(amounts in thousands)

Changes of benefit terms:  With the passage of House Bill 471, the eligibility for non-single subsidies (NSS) for the KEHP-
participating members who retired prior to July 1, 2010 is restored, but the state will only finance, via its KEHP "Shared 
Responsibility" contributions, the costs of the NSS related to those KEHP-participating members who retired on or after July 
1, 2010.

Contractually required contribution 908$       
Contributions in relation to the contractually 
  required contribution 908$       
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$            
KCTCS covered payroll 34,408$   
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 2.64%

Note: These are 10-year schedules.  However, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 
retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

(amounts in thousands)

Changes of benefit terms:  With the passage of House Bill 471, the eligibility for non-single subsidies (NSS) for the KEHP-
participating members who retired prior to July 1, 2010 is restored, but the state will only finance, via its KEHP "Shared 
Responsibility" contributions, the costs of the NSS related to those KEHP-participating members who retired on or after July 
1, 2010.

Schedule of KCTCS' Contribution
Kentucky Teacher's Retirement System - Medical Insurance Plan
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KCTCS' proportion of the net other postemployment benefit liability 1.11%
KCTCS' proportionate share of the net other postemployment benefit liability 243$       
KCTCS' covered payroll 35,898$   
KCTCS' proportionate share of the net other postemployment benefit liability
  as a percentage of its covered payroll 0.68%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total other postemployment benefit
  liability 79.99%

Note:  This table represents data that is one year in arrears.
These are 10-year schedules.  However, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 
retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Schedule of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability
Kentucky Teacher's Retirement System - Life Insurance Plan

(amounts in thousands)

Contractually required contribution 5$           
Contributions in relation to the contractually 
  required contribution 5$           
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$            
KCTCS covered payroll 34,408$   
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 0.01%

Note: These are 10-year schedules.  However, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 
retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

(amounts in thousands)

Schedule of KCTCS' Contribution
Kentucky Teacher's Retirement System - Life Insurance Plan
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KCTCS' proportion of the net other postemployment benefit liability 1.50%
KCTCS' proportionate share of the net other postemployment benefit liability 38,094$   
KCTCS' covered payroll 23,258$   
KCTCS' proportionate share of the net other postemployment benefit liability
  as a percentage of its covered payroll 163.79%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total other postemployment benefit
  liability 24.40%

Note:  This table represents data that is one year in arrears.
These are 10-year schedules.  However, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 
retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Schedule of KCTCS' Proportionate Share of the Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability
Kentucky Employees Retirement System

(amounts in thousands)

Changes in assumptions:  The assumed investment rate of return was changed from 7.50 percent to 6.25 percent.  The 
inflation assumption was changed from 3.25 percent to 2.30 percent, which also resulted in a 0.95 percent decrease in the 
salary assumption at all years of service.  The payroll growth assumption was changed from 4.00 percent to 0.00 percent.  
The discount rate was changed from 6.90 percent to 5.83 percent.

Contractually required contribution 1,853$     
Contributions in relation to the contractually 
  required contribution 1,853$     
Contribution deficiency (excess) -$            
KCTCS covered payroll 22,028$   
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 8.41%

Note: These are 10-year schedules.  However, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 
retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Changes in assumptions:  The assumed investment rate of return was changed from 7.50 percent to 6.25 percent.  The 
inflation assumption was changed from 3.25 percent to 2.30 percent, which also resulted in a 0.95 percent decrease in the 
salary assumption at all years of service.  The payroll growth assumption was changed from 4.00 percent to 0.00 percent.  
The discount rate was changed from 6.90 percent to 5.83 percent.

Schedule of KCTCS' Contribution
Kentucky Employees Retirement System

(amounts in thousands)
Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
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Total OPEB liability
Service cost 4,839$       
Interest 11,366       
Changes of benefit terms -                
Differences between expected and actual experience (39,172)      
Changes of assumptions (1,929)        
Benefit payments (3,357)        
Net change in total OPEB liability (28,252)$    
Total OPEB liability - beginning 191,649     
Total OPEB liability - ending 163,397$    

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer -$              
Net investment income 18,684
Benefit payments (3,357)        
Administrative expense (144)           
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 15,184$     
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 170,933
Plan fiduciary net position - ending 186,117$    

Net OPEB asset (22,720)      

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 114%
Covered-employee payroll 137,768$    
Net OPEB asset as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 16%

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios
Kentucky Community and Technical College System

Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
(amounts in thousands)

Note: These are 10-year schedules.  However, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 
retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Changes in assumptions:  The discount rate was changed from 6% to 7%.  The salary increase rate was set at 3%.  
Health Care and Contribution trend rates were updated from 7% in fiscal 2016 and an ultimate rate of 4% in fiscal 
2036 to an initial rate of 7.50%, 7% and 6% in fiscal 2018 for KCTCS, UK Pre-65, UK Post-65, respectively, and an 
ultimate rate of 4.50% in fiscal 2038 for all plans.  The lapse rate for current and future retirees and their spouses 
was updated from 10% to 3%.  The participation rate was updated from 95% to 90%.  Retirees electing spousal 
coverage was updated from 30% to 15%.  75% of future KCTCS retirees who have waived coverage are assumed to 
stay without coverage until age 65 and to elect coverage at age 65.  This was updated from 100%.  The impact of 
the Affordable Care Act excise tax on high-cost healthcare plans was estimated and updated.  KCTCS health per 
capita costs were updated based on updated premium and census data.  Mortality for healthy employees was 
updated from RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table for Males and Females Projected Generationally with 
scale MP-2014 to RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table for Males and Females Backed off to 2006 and 
Projected Generationally with Scale MP-2016. Mortality for disabled employees was updated from RP-2014 Disabled 
Mortality Table for Males and Females Projected Generationally with scale MP-2014 to RP-2014 Disabled Mortality 
Table for Males and Females Backed off to 2006 and Projected Generationally with Scale MP-2016.
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Actuarially determined contribution 1,607$           
Contributions made -                    
Contribution deficiency (excess) 1,607$           

Covered-employee payroll  $       137,768 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 1.17%

Schedule of KCTCS' Contribution
Kentucky Community and Technical College System

Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
(amounts in thousands)

Note: These are 10-year schedules.  However, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented 
retroactively.  Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10-years of information is available.

Changes in assumptions:  The discount rate was changed from 6% to 7%.  The salary increase rate was set at 3%.  
Health Care and Contribution trend rates were updated from 7% in fiscal 2016 and an ultimate rate of 4% in fiscal 
2036 to an initial rate of 7.50%, 7% and 6% in fiscal 2018 for KCTCS, UK Pre-65, UK Post-65, respectively, and an 
ultimate rate of 4.50% in fiscal 2038 for all plans.  The lapse rate for current and future retirees and their spouses 
was updated from 10% to 3%.  The participation rate was updated from 95% to 90%.  Retirees electing spousal 
coverage was updated from 30% to 15%.  75% of future KCTCS retirees who have waived coverage are assumed to 
stay without coverage until age 65 and to elect coverage at age 65.  This was updated from 100%.  The impact of 
the Affordable Care Act excise tax on high-cost healthcare plans was estimated and updated.  KCTCS health per 
capita costs were updated based on updated premium and census data.  Mortality for healthy employees was 
updated from RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table for Males and Females Projected Generationally with 
scale MP-2014 to RP-2014 Combined Healthy Mortality Table for Males and Females Backed off to 2006 and 
Projected Generationally with Scale MP-2016. Mortality for disabled employees was updated from RP-2014 Disabled 
Mortality Table for Males and Females Projected Generationally with scale MP-2014 to RP-2014 Disabled Mortality 
Table for Males and Females Backed off to 2006 and Projected Generationally with Scale MP-2016.
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See also Note 11 Postemployment Benefit Plans (OPEB) 
 
 

Actuarial AAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued (Funded)/ Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered

Date Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

July 1, 2015 178,552$ 168,682$ (9,870)$   105.9% 143,621$ -6.90%
July 1, 2017 186,117$ 163,397$ (22,720)$ 113.9% 137,768$ -16.49%

Schedule of Funding Progress for the KCTCS Retiree Health Plan
(amounts in thousands)
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KENTUCKY COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM 
Officers of the KCTCS Board of Regents, KCTCS Board of Regents  

and KCTCS President’s Cabinet 
 
 

 Officers of the KCTCS Board of Regents 
Ms. Marcia L. Roth, Chair 
Dr. Gail R. Henson, Vice Chair 
Ms. Tammy C. Thompson, Secretary 
 
KCTCS Board of Regents 
Ms. Lisa V. Desmarais 
Dr. Wynetta J. Fletcher 
Dr. Angela Fultz 
Dr. Gail R. Henson 
Ms. Mary R. Kinney 
Mr. Barry K. Martin 
Mr. Porter G. Peeples, Sr. 
Mr. Gavin B. Posey 
Ms. Marcia L. Roth 
Mr. Ricky Lee Smith 
Mr. James Lee Stevens 
Mr. Donald R. Tarter 
Ms. Tammy C. Thompson 
Mr. Mark A. Wells 
 
KCTCS President’s Cabinet 
Dr. Jay K. Box, President 
Dr. Paul B. Czarapata 
Dr. Larry A. Ferguson 
Mr. Wendell A. Followell 
Hon. Hannah Hodges 
Dr. Gloria S. McCall 
Hon. Michael Murray 
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Crowe LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Global 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial  
Reporting and on Compliance And Other Matters Based on  
an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance  

With Government Auditing Standards 
 
 
 
Members of the Board of Regents 
Kentucky Community and Technical College System  
Versailles, Kentucky 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Kentucky Community 
and Technical College System (the System), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the System's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 
2018.  
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the System’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the System's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Lexington, Kentucky 
October 22, 2018 
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U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Direct Grants - 

Student Financial Aid Cluster
Federal Supplmental Educational   
    Opportunity Grant Program 84.007 3,259,279$          
Federal Work Study Program 84.033 3,447,944            
Pell Grant Program 84.063 134,077,382         
Direct Loan Program 84.268 94,946,005          

235,730,610         

TRIO Cluster
Student Support Services 84.042 3,485,279            
Educational Talent Search 84.044 755,474 
Upward Bound 84.047 1,379,767            
Educational Opportunity Center   84.066 328,633 
          Total TRIO Cluster 5,949,153            

Title III Strengthening Institutions 84.031 2,729,509            

Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Ed 84.116 996,994 

Project BEAM (HEP) 84.141 514,029 

10,189,685          
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Adult Education
ABE-Learning Center/Ashland - Boyd 84.002 PO2 415 1700001103 12,622 
ABE-Learning Center/Big Sandy - Floyd 84.002 PO2 415 1700001104 2,878 
ABE-Learning Center/Big Sandy - Johnson 84.002 PO2 415 1700001104 3,206 
ABE-Learning Center/Bluegrass - Boyle 84.002 PO2 415 1700001116 1,599 
ABE-Learning Center/Bluegrass - Clark 84.002 PO2 415 1700001116 2,217 
ABE-Learning Center/Bluegrass - Scott 84.002 PO2 415 1700001116 2,534 
ABE-Learning Center/Bluegrass - Anderson 84.002 PO2 415 1700001116 1,503 
ABE-Learning Center/Bluegrass - Fayette 84.002 PO2 415 1700001116 12,910 
ABE-Learning Center/Etown - Washington 84.002 PO2 415 1700001152 1,027 
ABE-Learning Center/Etown - Nelson 84.002 PO2 415 1700001152 1,899 
ABE-Learning Center/Etown - Grayson 84.002 PO2 415 1700001152 5,123 
ABE-Learning Center/Etown - Meade 84.002 PO2 415 1700001152 1,022 
ABE-Learning Center/Gateway 84.002 PO2 415 1700001205 16,104 
ABE-Learning Center/Henderson - Union 84.002 PO2 415 1700001222 1,227 
ABE-Learning Center/Henderson 84.002 PO2 415 1700001222 3,623 
ABE-Learning Center/Hopkinsville - Caldwell 84.002 PO2 415 1700001223 747 
ABE-Learning Center/Hopkinsville - Christian 84.002 PO2 415 1700001223 6,378 
ABE-Learning Center/Hopkinsville - Todd 84.002 PO2 415 1700001223 351 
ABE-Learning Center/Madisonville - Muhlenberg 84.002 PO2 415 1700001240 2,836 
ABE-Learning Center/Madisonville - Hopkins 84.002 PO2 415 1700001240 3,469 
ABE-Learning Center/Maysville 84.002 PO2 415 1700001249 8,685 
ABE-Learning Center/Owensboro - Ohio 84.002 PO2 415 1700001266 1,858 
ABE-Learning Center/Owensboro - McLean 84.002 PO2 415 1700001266 516 
ABE-Learning Center/Owensboro - Daviess 84.002 PO2 415 1700001266 7,387 
ABE-Learning Center/Somerset - Casey 84.002 PO2 415 1700001276 3,887 
ABE-Learning Center/Somerset - McCreary 84.002 PO2 415 1700001276 3,704 
ABE-Learning Center/Somerset - Adair 84.002 PO2 415 1700001276 1,201 
ABE-Learning Center/Southcentral KY - Simpson 84.002 PO2 415 1700001285 1,606 
ABE-Learning Center/Southcentral KY - Metcalfe 84.002 PO2 415 1700001285 973 
ABE-Learning Center/Southcentral KY - Barren 84.002 PO2 415 1700001285 3,469 
ABE-Learning Center/Southcentral KY - Warren 84.002 PO2 415 1700001285 8,185 
ABE-Learning Center/West KY - McCracken 84.002 PO2 415 1700001339 2,692 
ABE-Learning Center/West KY - Graves 84.002 PO2 415 1700001339 2,990 
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U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (Continued)
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Adult Education (continued)
ABE-Learning Center/Jefferson - Henry 84.002 PO2 415 1700001425 2,854 
ABE-Learning Center/Jefferson - Carroll 84.002 PO2 415 1700001425 877 
ABE-Learning Center/Jefferson - Shelby 84.002 PO2 415 1700001425 1,326 
ABE-Learning Center/Jefferson - Gallatin 84.002 PO2 415 1700001425 1,469 
ABE-Learning Center/Jefferson - Trimble 84.002 PO2 415 1700001425 682 
ABE-Learning Center/Jefferson - Bullitt 84.002 PO2 415 1700001425 5,434 
ABE-Learning Center/Hazard - Knott 84.002 PO2 415 1700001436 2,642 
ABE-Learning Center/Hazard - Leslie 84.002 PO2 415 1700001436 1,544 
ABE-Learning Center/Southeast - Bell 84.002 PO2 415 1700001444 4,286 
ABE-Learning Center/Southeast - Letcher 84.002 PO2 415 1700001444 2,363 
ABE-Learning Center/Southeast - Harlan 84.002 PO2 415 1700001444 4,041 
KYAE/Fayette Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1700001554 1,979 
KYAE/Christian Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1700001685 1,529 
KYAE/Shelby Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1700001694 99 
KYAE/Barren Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1700001709 425 
KYAE/Warren Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1700001709 375 
KYAE/Graves Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1700001714 419 
KYAE/McCracken Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1700001714 419 
ABE-Learning Center/Ashland - Boyd 84.002 PO2 415 1800001403 45,644 
ABE-Learning Center/Big Sandy - Floyd 84.002 PO2 415 1800001404 123,394 
ABE-Learning Center/Big Sandy - Johnson 84.002 PO2 415 1800001404 84,416 
ABE-Learning Center/Bluegrass - Fayette 84.002 PO2 415 1800001407 393,585 
ABE-Learning Center/Bluegrass - Boyle 84.002 PO2 415 1800001407 47,288 
ABE-Learning Center/Bluegrass - Clark 84.002 PO2 415 1800001407 68,308 
ABE-Learning Center/Bluegrass - Scott 84.002 PO2 415 1800001407 63,098 
ABE-Learning Center/Bluegrass - Anderson 84.002 PO2 415 1800001407 26,067 
ABE-Learning Center/Etown - Meade 84.002 PO2 415 1800001412 40,491 
ABE-Learning Center/Etown - Washington 84.002 PO2 415 1800001412 17,381 
ABE-Learning Center/Etown - Nelson 84.002 PO2 415 1800001412 61,410 
ABE-Learning Center/Etown - Grayson 84.002 PO2 415 1800001412 112,456 
ABE-Learning Center/Gateway 84.002 PO2 415 1800001415 441,406 
ABE-Learning Center/Hazard - Leslie 84.002 PO2 415 1800001416 50,908 
ABE-Learning Center/Hazard - Knott 84.002 PO2 415 1800001416 40,308 
ABE-Learning Center/Henderson 84.002 PO2 415 1800001417 71,581 
ABE-Learning Center/Henderson - Union 84.002 PO2 415 1800001417 29,400 
ABE-Learning Center/Hopkinsville - Christian 84.002 PO2 415 1800001420 122,912 
ABE-Learning Center/Hopkinsville - Caldwell 84.002 PO2 415 1800001420 21,263 
ABE-Learning Center/Hopkinsville - Todd 84.002 PO2 415 1800001420 35,089 
ABE-Learning Center/Jefferson - Bullitt 84.002 PO2 415 1800001422 147,756 
ABE-Learning Center/Jefferson - Henry 84.002 PO2 415 1800001422 25,368 
ABE-Learning Center/Jefferson - Carroll 84.002 PO2 415 1800001422 29,805 
ABE-Learning Center/Jefferson - Shelby 84.002 PO2 415 1800001422 89,836 
ABE-Learning Center/Jefferson - Gallatin 84.002 PO2 415 1800001422 29,257 
ABE-Learning Center/Jefferson - Trimble 84.002 PO2 415 1800001422 15,152 
ABE-Learning Center/Madisonville - Hopkins 84.002 PO2 415 1800001424 85,334 
ABE-Learning Center/Madisonville - Muhlenberg 84.002 PO2 415 1800001424 78,940 
ABE-Learning Center/Maysville 84.002 PO2 415 1800001425 240,083 
ABE-Learning Center/Owensboro - Daviess 84.002 PO2 415 1800001427 152,951 
ABE-Learning Center/Owensboro - Ohio 84.002 PO2 415 1800001427 56,051 
ABE-Learning Center/Owensboro - McLean 84.002 PO2 415 1800001427 16,881 
ABE-Learning Center/Owensboro - Hancock 84.002 PO2 415 1800001427 28,757 
ABE-Learning Center/Somerset - Russell 84.002 PO2 415 1800001429 71,937 
ABE-Learning Center/Somerset - Adair 84.002 PO2 415 1800001429 54,029 
ABE-Learning Center/Somerset - Casey 84.002 PO2 415 1800001429 57,140 
ABE-Learning Center/Somerset - McCreary 84.002 PO2 415 1800001429 69,189 
ABE-Learning Center/Southcentral KY - Warren 84.002 PO2 415 1800001444 186,776 
ABE-Learning Center/Southcentral KY - Simpson 84.002 PO2 415 1800001444 45,961 
ABE-Learning Center/Southcentral KY - Metcalfe 84.002 PO2 415 1800001444 19,032 
ABE-Learning Center/Southcentral KY - Barren 84.002 PO2 415 1800001444 94,521 
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U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (Continued)
Pass-Through Grants -

ABE-Learning Center/Southeast - Harlan 84.002 PO2 415 1800001445 107,577 
ABE-Learning Center/Southeast - Bell 84.002 PO2 415 1800001445 100,601 
ABE-Learning Center/Southeast - Letcher 84.002 PO2 415 1800001445 57,269 
ABE-Learning Center/West KY - McCracken 84.002 PO2 415 1800001447 101,429 
ABE-Learning Center/West KY - Graves 84.002 PO2 415 1800001447 77,432 
KYAE/Shelby Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1800002457 7,839 
KYAE/Daviess Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1800002461 8,167 
KYAE/Barren Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1800002462 3,621 
KYAE/Warren Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1800002462 28,762 
KYAE/McCracken Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1800002465 10,100 
KYAE/Graves Co/EL Civics 84.002 PO2 415 1800002465 10,100 

4,167,249            

Kentucky Department of Education
Northern Regional Migrant Education 84.011 PON2 540 1500002704 (2,372) 
Western Regional Migrant Education 84.011 PON2 540 1600002689 1 14,875 
Northern Regional Migrant Education 84.011 PON2 540 1600002691 24,775 
Northern Regional Migrant Education 84.011 PON2 540 1600002994 124,965 
Western Regional Migrant Education 84.011 PON2 540 1600003017 147,556 
Northern Regional Migrant Education 84.011 PON2 540 1800000377 314,899 
Western Regional Migrant Education 84.011 PON2 540 1800000388 1 242,953 

867,651 

Kentucky Office of Career and Technical Education
KYAE/Carroll Co/Perkins Leadership 84.048 PO2 415 1700001425 808 
KYAE/Gallatin Co/Perkins Leadership 84.048 PO2 415 1700001425 782 
Perkins FY17 Assessment 84.048 PON2 540 1600002770 1 8,066 
Perkins FY17 Curriculum 84.048 PON2 540 1600002770 1 12,874 
Perkins FY17 Professional Development 84.048 PON2 540 1600002770 1 1,337 
Perkins FY17 Digital Badging to Support CBE 84.048 PON2 540 1600002770 2 6,874 
Perkins FY17 Post Secondary 84.048 PON2 540 1600003882 1 113,461 
Perkins FY17 Secondary 84.048 PON2 540 1600003882 1 20 
Perkins FY17 Leadership 84.048 PON2 540 1600003890 1 1,527 
Perkins FY18 Post Secondary 84.048 PON2 540 1700002834 1 6,416,067            
Perkins FY18 Secondary 84.048 PON2 540 1700002834 1 122,063 
Perkins FY18 Post Secondary Carry Forward 84.048 PON2 540 1700002834 2 478,853 
Perkins FY18 Secondary Carry Forward 84.048 PON2 540 1700002834 2 6,116 
Perkins FY18 HOSA 84.048 PON2 540 1700002878 1 4,000 
Perkins FY18 Leadership 84.048 PON2 540 1700002878 1 41,363 
Perkins FY18 Technical Support 84.048 PON2 540 1700002878 1 2,892 
Perkins FY18 Assessment 84.048 PON2 540 1700002879 1 37,783 
Perkins FY18 Curriculum 84.048 PON2 540 1700002879 1 209,762 
Perkins FY18 Professional Development 84.048 PON2 540 1700002879 1 152,723 
Perkins FY18 Camp Impact 84.048 PON2 540 1700002879 2 52,228 
Perkins FY18 Faculty Guild 84.048 PON2 540 1700002879 2 63,811 

7,733,410            

Kentucky Office for the Blind and Office of Vocational Rehabilitation
Pre-Employment Transition Services 84.126 PON2 531 1800001523 1 7,297 

Berea College
Gear-Up 84.334 MOA 31,205 
Gear-Up 84.334 MOA 17,930 
Gear-Up 84.334 MOA 20,821 

69,956 

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 258,765,858         
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER
Direct Grants - 

U.S. National Science Foundation
NSF OCTC Access to STEM 47.076 106,119
NSF GeoTech Center of Excellence 47.076 349,419
NSF AMTEC National Center for Excellence 47.076 74,299
NSF Advanced Transport Fuels 47.076 33,290
NSF Technical Education for the Rural Community 47.076 23,612
NSF 2nd Look: Increasing STEM 47.076 24,732
NSF Additive Manufacturing 47.076 47,139
NSF Regional Partnership 47.076 295,636
NSF High School Pipeline 47.076 131,238
NSF GEO Team 47.076 488
NSF GeoTech Center of Excellence 47.076 375,950

1,461,922
Pass-Through Grants -

Austin Community College 
Genomic Approach in Biotech 47.076 Sub award NSF-1501207 106,952

University of Kentucky Research Foundation
LSAMP-KY-WV Mid Level Alliance 47.076 3048111054-14-123 12,528

University of Kentucky EPSCoR
Natural Product for Essential Oils 47.083 3200000271-16-076 2,977
EPSCoR Research Infrastructure-Yr2 47.083 3200000271-16-077 3,820
EPSCoR Research Infrastructure-Yr3 47.083 3200000271-18-058 13,816

20,613

TOTAL RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER 1,602,015

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Direct Grants - 

State EMS Response Data System 93.000 11,034
EMSC Partnership Grants 93.127 127,453
Project C.A.R.E 93.243 98,189
Rural Network Allied Health Training 93.912 138,574

375,250
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Cluster
   Ready to Work FY17 93.558 PO2 736 1600004582 402,735
   Ready to Work FY18 93.558 PO2 736 1600004582 8,330,662
      Total TANF Cluster 8,733,397

Medical Assistance Program Cluster
   Kentucky Nurse Aide Training 93.778 PO2 746 1600000734 1 7,919

Patient Tracking System 93.069 PON2 728 1600002338 1 2,567

Catholic Charities Foundation
Wilson Fish Refugee Social Services 93.566 255-107016-2017 15,304
Wilson Fish Refugee Social Services 93.566 255-107016-2018 27,587
Wilson Fish Refugee Social Services 93.566 255-108160-2017 17,237
Wilson Fish Refugee Social Services 93.566 255-108160-2018 39,773
Targeted Assistance for Refugees (TAG-D) 93.576 260-107016-2017 14,090
Targeted Assistance for Refugees (TAG) 93.576 260-107016-2018 27,929
Targeted Assistance for Refugees (TAG) 93.584 257-108160-2017 13,774
Targeted Assistance for Refugees (TAG) 93.584 257-108160-2018 10,233

165,927
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U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES (Continued)
Pass-Through Grants -

University of Kentucky Research Foundation
Model State Supported AHEC 93.107 PO# 7800003572 60,200
Southeast KY AHEC 93.107 PO# 7800003533 14,326
Model State Supported AHEC 93.107 PO# 7800003551 9,211
Southeast KY AHEC 93.107 PO# 7800004002 44,639
Corazon de la Familia 93.361 PO# 7800003844 22,081

150,457
CCDF Cluster
   STARS Quality Child Care 93.596 N/A 152,321

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 9,587,838

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Direct Grants - 

USDA NIFA Greenhouse 10.225 10,363
USDA Emerging Technologies 10.351 3,524
USDA Free Workskills Workshop 10.351 5,288
USDA AMTAP 10.351 46,370
USDA Rural Business Development 10.351 8,065
USDA Delta Health Service Grant/EMS 10.874 50,776
USDA Train Home Healthcare Workforce 10.874 165,441
USDA Health Care Simulation Expansion 10.874 7,002

296,829

Pass-Through Grants -
Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services

SNAP - Pilot Project 10.596 PO2 736 1700001642 1 35,076
SNAP E & T 2018 10.596 PO2 736 1800001836 44,587
Paths2Promise (SNAP) 10.596 PON2 736 1600002682 1,458,849

1,538,512

Kentucky Adult Education
KYAE/Bell Co/P2P 10.596 PO2 415 1700001444 2,201
KYAE/Harlan Co/P2P 10.596 PO2 415 1700001444 1,132
KYAE/Letcher Co/P2P 10.596 PO2 415 1700001444 117
KYAE/Leslie Co/P2P 10.596 PO2 415 1800001416 6,257
KYAE/Bell Co/P2P 10.596 PO2 415 1800001445 41,050
KYAE/Harlan Co/P2P 10.596 PO2 415 1800001445 22,585

73,342

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 1,908,683

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
Pass-Through Grants -

American Lightweight Materials Manufacturing Innovation Institute
Closing CMM Skills Gap 12.XXX PO# 0026 2,403

WIB - West Kentucky ADD
FTC Strong Workforce Development 12.607 MOA 279,241

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 281,644
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U. S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Direct Grants - 

DOJ Violence Against Women 16.525 64,770

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 64,770

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Direct Grants - 

DOL TAACCCT IMPACT Grant 17.282 42,142
DOL Enhancing Prog. IT Cert (EPIC) 17.282 2,775,960

2,818,102

Kentucky Department of Labor
KY DOL Apprenticeship 17.285 PON2 106 1800000394 1 264,850

WIOA Cluster
Pass-Through Grants -

Brighton Center, Inc
JAG Grant Jefferson FY18 17.258 MOU 63,488

Eastern Kentucky Concentrated Employment Program (EKCEP)
EKCEP/AO - Big Sandy 17.258 N/A 4,756
EKCEP/AO - Southeast KY 17.258 N/A 3,003
EKCEP/AO - Big Sandy 17.258 MOU 8,651

WIB - Lincoln Trail ADD
GEAR UP for FAME 17.259 LTADD -16-17-002 14,882

WIB - Northern Kentucky ADD
JAG Grant Jefferson FY17 17.258 E 17-875-41-JAG-FY 2017 2,440

WIB - West Kentucky ADD
WIOA Title 1B Youth Services 17.259 A-170422 2,805
Workforce Connections Program 17.259 A-170440 6,086
WIOA Title IB Youth Services 17.259 A-180422 94,906
Workforce Connections Program 17.259 A-180440 202,706
   Total WIOA Cluster 403,723

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 3,486,675

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Transportation Cabinet
KEMSIS 8th Year 20.616 M3DA-17-04 2,560
KEMSIS 9th Year 20.616 M3DA-18-04 75,000

77,560

TOTAL U. S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 77,560
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APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION
Direct Grants - 

Selling to the World Initiative 23.001 61,537 
Big Sandy IT Initiative 23.002 61,105 
Rowan Campus Equipment 23.002 500,000 
Lineman/Fiber Optic Training 23.002 34,613 
EKCCT Project 23.002 577,669 
KY-WV Regional Drone Project 23.002 209,824 
Southeast KY Revitalization 23.002 35,375 

1,480,123            

Pass-Through Grants -
Eastern Kentucky PRIDE, Inc.

PRIDE Education Grant 23.002 EEG-17-041 2,541 
PRIDE Education Grant 23.002 EEG-18-035 1,693 

4,234 

TOTAL APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION 1,484,357            

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION
Pass-Through Grants -

University of Kentucky Research Foundation
NASA Student Career Exploration 43.008 3048112042-15-075 455 
High Altitude Ballooning Project 43.008 3200000161-17-148 3,037 
KY NASA The Sky's the Limit 43.008 320000161-171-147 11,249 
OCTC NASA Rover Team 2018 43.008 3210000183-18-198 9,741 
National SPACE Grant College and Fellowship Program 43.008 3200000161-18-200 107 

24,589 

TOTAL NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION 24,589 

U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
Pass-Through Grants -

University of Kentucky Research Foundation
SE Kentucky SBDC - Federal 59.037 32000013037-17-162 21,960 
SE Kentucky SBDC - Federal 59.037 PO7800004146 36,687 

58,647 

TOTAL U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 58,647 

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS
Direct Grants - 

VA Approving Grant CF Account 64.124 24,630 
Veterans Approving OPER FY16 64.124 (687) 
Veterans Approving ADM FY17 64.124 647 
Veterans Approving OPER FY17 64.124 62,826 
Veterans Approving ADM FY18 64.124 1,329 
Veterans Approving OPER FY18 64.124 170,723 

259,468 

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS 259,468 
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ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION GRANTS
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Association for Environmental Education
KAEE EPA Partnership 66.951 00D43216 2,608 

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION GRANTS 2,608 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services
FY17-18 Hazwoper Training 81.502 PO2 728 1600005220 505 

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 505 

DELTA REGIONAL AUTHORITY
Pass-Through Grants -

Pennyrile Area Development District
Meeting Demand for Lineman in West KY 90.204 KY-50780 64,228 

TOTAL DELTA REGIONAL AUTHORITY 64,228 

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Cabinet for Health and Family Services
Gateway AmeriCorps 94.006 PON2 730 1700000014 1 8,157 
Gateway AmeriCorps 94.006 PON2 730 1800000303 1 27,547 

35,704 

Kentucky Commission on Community Volunteerism and Service
Fuel Hope Volunteer Project 94.021 N/A 4,804 

TOTAL CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE 40,508 

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Pass-Through Grants -

Kentucky Division of Emergency Management
CSEPP Training CSEPP Counties 97.040 PO2 095 16000063671 35,100 

TOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 35,100 

TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS 277,745,053$       
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Subtotals of Multiple Awards 
Rural Business Development Grant 10.351 $ 63,247 
Paths2Promise (SNAP) 10.596 1,611,854 
Delta Health Services 10.874 223,219 
WIOA Adult Program 17.258 82,338 
WIOA Youth Activities 17.259 321,385 
Trade Adjustments Assistance Community College 
  and Career Training (TAACCCT) Grant Cluster 17.282 2,818,102 
National Priority Safety Programs 20.616 77,560 
Appalachian Area Development 23.002 1,422,820 
Education and Human Resources 47.076 1,581,402 
Model State Supported AHEC 93.107 128,376 
Temporarily Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 8,733,397 
Wilson Fish Refugee Social Services 93.566 99,901 
Targeted Asst for Refugees (TAG) 93.584 24,007 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the System provided $755,032 in expenditures to subrecipients as follows: 

Federal Agency/Program Title CFDA Number Amount 

U.S. Department of Justice 
Violence Against Women  16.525 $ 19,808 

U.S. Department of Labor 
DOL Enhancing Prog. IT Cert (EPIC) 17.282 260,120 

Appalachian Regional Commission 
KY-WV Regional Drone Project    23.002 100,000 

National Science Foundation 
AMTEC 47.076 3,818 
GeoTech National Center for 
  For Excellence 47.076 66,116 
Rural Network Allied Health 47.076 80,138 
MultiSkill Regional Partnership 47.076 200,597 

350,669 
U.S. Department of Education 

Northern Regional Migrant 
  Education Grant 84.011 20,000 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
Rural Network Allied Health Training  93.912 4,435 

$ 755,032 
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1.   Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award 
activity of the System under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2018. The 
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected 
portion of the operations of the System, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, 
changes in net assets, or cash flows of the System.   
 
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The System has 
elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
 
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 
 
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of 
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. 
 
 
2. Testing Populations for Uniform Guidance Testing 
 
The populations used for selecting Uniform Guidance testing samples consisted of system-wide data, which 
includes the following Colleges: 
 
 Ashland Community and Technical College 
 Big Sandy Community and Technical College 
 Bluegrass Community and Technical College 
 Elizabethtown Community and Technical College 
 Gateway Community and Technical College 
 Hazard Community and Technical College 
 Henderson Community College 
 Hopkinsville Community College 
 Jefferson Community and Technical College 
 Madisonville Community College 
 Maysville Community and Technical College 
 Owensboro Community and Technical College 
 Somerset Community College 
 Southcentral Kentucky Community and Technical College 
 Southeast Kentucky Community and Technical College 
 West Kentucky Community and Technical College 
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3.   Federal Student Loan Program 
 
The System participates in the Direct Loan Program (including Direct Unsubsidized Loans for Students, 
and Direct PLUS Loans for parents of undergraduate students). 
 
 Federal Direct Student Loans Program 
  Direct loans 
   Subsidized $   49,710,862  
   Unsubsidized     44,602,035 
  PLUS  633,108 
 
    $ 94,946,005 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial  
Reporting and on Compliance And Other Matters Based on  
an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance  

With Government Auditing Standards 
 
 
 
Members of the Board of Regents 
Kentucky Community and Technical College System  
Versailles, Kentucky 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Kentucky Community 
and Technical College System (the System), a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the System's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 
2018.  
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the System’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the System's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Lexington, Kentucky 
October 22, 2018 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major  

Federal Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
In Accordance with Uniform Guidance  

 
 
 
 
Board of Regents 
Kentucky Community and Technical College System  
Versailles, Kentucky 
 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited the Kentucky Community and Technical College System's (the System) compliance with 
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the System's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2018. The System's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management's Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.  
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the System's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and the Audit Requirements 
for Federal Award (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the System's compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the System's compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, the System complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2018. 
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Other Matters 
 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be 
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs as item 2018-002. Our opinion on each major federal program is not 
modified with respect to these matters. 
 
The System’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The System’s response was not subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
response. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 
Management of the System is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the System’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the System’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as items 2018-001 and 2018-002, that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 
 
The System’s responses to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit are described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The System’s responses were not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the responses. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe LLP 
 
Lexington, Kentucky 
October 22, 2018
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Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results 

Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the      
Financial statements audited were prepared 
In accordance with GAAP:      Unmodified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 

Material weakness(es) identified?                Yes      X   No 
 

Significant deficiencies identified not  
considered to be material weaknesses?                 Yes      X   None Reported 

 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?                Yes      X   No 
 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal Control over major programs: 
 

Material weakness(es) identified?                Yes      X    No 
 

Significant deficiencies identified not  
considered to be material weaknesses?        X    Yes          None Reported 

 
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for  
major programs:      Unmodified  
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be  
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?         X   Yes         No 
 
Identification of major programs: 
 
CFDA Number(s)  Name of Federal Program or Cluster    
    Student Financial Aid Cluster: 
84.007       Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 
84.033       Federal Work-Study Program 
84.063       Federal Pell Grant Program 
84.268       Federal Direct Student Loans 
 
93.558    Temporary Assistance for Needy Families      
 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs:  $3,000,000 
 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?         X    Yes         No 
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Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
None noted.  
 
Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs  
 
Finding 2018-001 - Verification 
 
Information on the Federal Program:  Student Financial Aid Cluster (CFDA Numbers 84.007, 84.033, 
84.063, 84.268) – U.S. Department of Education 
 
Criteria:  34 CFR 668.59(b) – Changes to FAFSA Information – For the Federal Grant Pell Program, if an 
applicant’s FAFSA information changes as a result of verification, an institution must (1) recalculate the 
applicant's Federal Pell Grant on the basis of the EFC on the corrected valid SAR or valid ISIR; and(2)(i) 
disburse any additional funds under that award only if the institution receives a corrected valid SAR or valid 
ISIR for the applicant and only to the extent that additional funds are payable based on the recalculation; 
(ii) comply with the procedures specified in §668.61 for an interim disbursement if, as a result of verification, 
the Federal Pell Grant award is reduced; or - (iii) comply with the procedures specified in 34 CFR 690.79 
for an overpayment that is not an interim disbursement if, as a result of verification, the Federal Pell Grant 
award is reduced. 
 
Condition: The system-wide testing population consisted of all 16 colleges within the System. This 
condition was noted in relation to the student financial aid office of: 
 
Kentucky Community and Technical College – System Office 
Hopkinsville Community College 
Maysville Community and Technical College 
 
During our system-wide testing of verification, we noted two instances in which information obtained during 
the verification process conflicted with the applicant’s FAFSA information and the applicant’s SAR/ISIR was 
not updated to reflect the correct information.  
 
Questioned Cost: $0  
 
Context: For two students in our system-wide, nonstatistical sample of 60 students, we noted the students’ 
verification worksheet reflected a change in number of family members in college from the original SAR 
which was not properly updated by the College.  In these two instances, the student’s EFC was $0 and 
there was no change in EFC or financial aid awarded with the updated information.  
 
Effect: The Colleges may not be in compliance with federal regulations. 
 
Cause:  The verification worksheet was reviewed and approved by the System’s student financial aid office, 
however, the SAR was not properly updated.  
  
Repeat Finding:  Yes. Finding 2017-001.   
 
Recommendation: We recommend management review internal controls surrounding the verification 
process and continue to provide periodic training to financial aid staff to ensure corrections found during 
the verification process are properly submitted.  
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Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
 
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: 
 
Management acknowledges the finding. See corrective action plan. 
 
 
Finding 2018-002 - Return Of Title IV Funds 
 
Information on the Federal Program: Student Financial Aid Cluster (CFDA Numbers 84.007, 84.033, 
84.063, 84.268) – U.S. Department of Education 
 
Criteria:   
 
Institutional charges - 34 CFR 668.22(g)(1)(ii) -  The institution must return the total amount of unearned 
Title IV aid disbursed during the enrollment period, or the product of multiplying the total amount of 
institutional charges incurred by the student for the enrollment period by the percentage of unearned Title 
IV aid.  
  
Scheduled breaks - 34 CFR 668.22(f)(2)(i) and (ii) (B) - Institutionally scheduled breaks of five or more 
consecutive days are excluded from the return of Title IV funds calculation as periods of nonattendance 
and, therefore, do not affect the calculation of the amount of federal aid earned.  
 
Inadvertent overpayments - DCL GEN-04-03 – Inadvertent overpayments – disbursements inadvertently 
made to a student after the student ceased attendance but prior to the date of the institution’s determination 
that the student withdrew – are included in an R2T4 calculation as aid that could have been disbursed. 
 
Condition: During our testing of return of Title IV funds, we noted a control deficiency and three instances 
of noncompliance with federal compliance regulations.  These items were noted in relation to the following 
colleges: 
 
Kentucky Community and Technical College – System Office 
Ashland Community and Technical College 
Bluegrass Community and Technical College 
Elizabethtown Community and Technical College 
Henderson Community College 
Jefferson Community and Technical College 
Madisonville Community College 
 
Questioned Cost: $3,419 (Known)      
 
Context: During our system-wide testing of return of funds, we selected 60 withdrawn students in our 
nonstatistical sample to test for internal controls and compliance with federal regulations. We noted the 
following items:  
 

• We noted one instance where the institutional charges used in the return of funds calculation did 
not agree to the student’s billing account. The College impacted is Jefferson Community and 
Technical College.  
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Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
 

• During our review of the days in enrollment period calculation for each College, we noted the 
following errors regarding how scheduled break days are considered in the calculation:  

• Bluegrass Community and Technical College had a Thanksgiving Break spanning 5 days 
in length which was not properly deducted from the days in the enrollment period 
calculation. This impacted the return of Title IV calculations in the fall term.   

• Elizabethtown Community and Technical College had a Thanksgiving Break spanning 5 
days in length which was not properly deducted from the days in the enrollment period 
calculation. This impacted the return of Title IV calculations in the fall term.  

• Henderson Community College had a Thanksgiving Break spanning 5 days in length which 
was not properly deducted from the days in the enrollment period calculation.  We also 
noted weekend days surrounding scheduled breaks in which no regular classes were held 
were also not properly deducted from the days in enrollment period calculation. This 
impacted the return of Title IV calculations for the Fall and Spring terms.   

• Ashland Community and Technical College did not properly deduct weekend days 
surrounding scheduled breaks in which no regular classes were held from the days in 
enrollment period calculation. This impacted the return of Title IV calculations for the Fall 
and Spring terms.  

 
We noted there were 11 exceptions in our sample of 60 student withdrawals from these four 
Colleges.  In ten of these instances, the student had completed greater than 60% of the semester 
or was an unofficial withdrawal at an institution not required to take attendance resulting in the 
midpoint of the semester (50%) to be utilized as the percentage of aid earned, therefore, there was 
no impact on the amount of aid returned in these instances. In one instance, the original return of 
funds calculation resulted in the student’s percentage of aid earned as 59.7%.  Upon taking into 
account the scheduled break days for Thanksgiving Break, the student’s percentage of aid earned 
increased to 62.3%. Since the updated percentage of aid earned exceeded the 60% point in the 
period of enrollment, the student earned 100% of the Title IV funds the student awarded and 
disbursed and therefore, no Title IV aid should have been returned. The System returned $1,193 
in Title IV aid.  

 
• We noted one student in our sample who had withdrawn on September 11, 2017, however direct 

loans were disbursed on September 17, 2017 totaling $2,226. It was noted that the System did not 
recognize that the student was no longer enrolled and inadvertently disbursed loans. The loans 
were canceled on April 2, 2018. The college impacted is Madisonville Community College.  

 
Effect: The System may not be in compliance with federal regulations and may not return the appropriate 
amount of Title IV funds. 
 
Cause: There is no internal control in place to review the calculation of break days provided by each College 
to the System Financial Aid Department to ensure scheduled breaks are calculated in accordance with 
federal regulations and properly deducted from the days in enrollment peiod calculation.  For the 
subsequent loan disbursement to the student who withdrew,  the pending loan disbursement was not 
cancelled in the system upon the student withdrawing and not considered as aid that could have been 
disbursed in the original return of funds calculation.  
    
Repeat Finding:  No.  
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Recommendation: We recommend that the System Financial Aid Office implement the following 
processes: 1.) a process to review each College’s academic calendars and break days in the enrollment 
period to ensure the days in the enrollment period calculation is accurate and complete; 2.) consider a 
secondary review process of return of funds calculations to detect potential errors; and 3.) develop a 
process by which withdrawals are reported immediately to those individuals who are responsible for making 
Title IV disbursements.   
 
 
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: 
 
Management acknowledges the finding. See corrective action plan. 
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Finding 2017‐001: 
 
Condition: The system-wide testing population consisted of all 16 colleges within the System. This 
condition was noted in relation to the student financial aid office of: 
 
Bluegrass Community and Technical College 
Hazard Community and Technical College 
Jefferson Community and Technical College 
 
During our system-wide testing of verification, we noted three instances in which information obtained 
during the verification process conflicted with the applicant’s FAFSA information and the applicant’s 
SAR/ISIR was not updated to reflect the correct information.  
 
Status: Unresolved. See Finding 2018-001. 
 
 
Finding 2017‐002: 
 
Condition: The system-wide testing population consisted of all 16 colleges within the System. This 
condition was noted in system office procedures and impacted: 
 
Kentucky Community and Technical College – System Office 
Bluegrass Community and Technical College 
Elizabethtown Community and Technical College 
Gateway Community and Technical College 
Jefferson Community and Technical College 
Madisonville Community College 
 
During our examination of Title IV disbursements, we noted instances where the notification sent to the 
student notifying the student that direct loans were disbursed to their student account was not sent within 
the required 30 day timeframe.  
 
Status: Resolved. 
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